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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Jindal Stainless Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Jindal Stainless Limited (‘the
Caompany'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information reqguired by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards {‘Ind AS") specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit
(including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10} of the Act. Our respensibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment in associate and
subsidiary company

We draw reference to note 4 to the
standalone financial statements.

The Company has investment in equity
instruments of its associate, Jindal United
Steel Limited and subsidiary company, PT.
Jindal Stainless Indonesia amounting to
F 175.05 crores and ¥ 5488 crores,
respectively. Such investments in the
aforesaid associate and subsidiary company
are accounted for at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27, Separate Financial Statements.
The Company assesses the recoverability of
these  investments  when impairment
indicators exist, by comparing the fair value
{less costs of disposal) and carrying amount
of the investment as on the reporting date in
accordance with Ind AS 36, Impairment of
Assets.

The aforesaid investments are not traded in
any recognized stock exchange(s). The fair
values of the investments are determined by
a management-appointed independent
valuation specialist based on discounted cash
flow ('DCF') method. The process of
cemputation of fair wvaluation for such
investments using DCF method is complex.
Management's assessment of the fair
valuation of investment requires estimation
and judgement around assumptions used.

The key assumptions underpinning
management's assessment of the fair
valuation include, but are not limited to,

projections of future cash flows, growth rates,
discount rates, estimated future operating and
capital expenditure.

The application of significant judgment in this
matter required substantial involvement of
internal and extemal valuation experts on the
audit engagement.

Accordingly, assessment of impairment loss to
be recognised, if any, on the carrying value of
investment made in the associate and
subsidiary company has been considered to be
a key audit matter for current year's audit.

Our audit procedures were focused on
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
that the carrying value of investments in the
associate, Jindal United Steel Limited and
subsidiary, PT. Jindal Stainless Indonesia are
not materially misstated. These procedures
inciuded, but were not limited to, the following:

We obtained an understanding of
management's processes and controls for
determining the fair valuation of investments.
The understanding was obtained by
performance of walkthroughs which included
inspection of documents produced by the
Company and discussion with those involved in
the process of valuation.

In addition to the evaluation of design and
testing the operating effectiveness of controls
implemented for identification of impairment
indicators and measurement of impairment
provisions, we alsoc performed the following
procedures:

+ Assessed the qualification and cbjectivity of
the management-appointed independent
valuation specialist to determine the fair
value of investments;

o Assessed the appropriateness of valuation
methodology used for the fair valuation
computation with the help of an auditor's
expert, and fested the mathematical
accuracy of management’s model,

» Reconciled the cash flow projections to the
business plans approved by the Company's
management;

e Challenged the management's assessment
of underlying assumptions used for the cash
flow projections including the impilied growth
rates, considering evidence available,
including the impact of COVID-18 pandemic,
where appropriate to suppoit these
assumptions and our understanding of the
business;

e Tested the discount rate and long-term
growth rates used in the forecast including
comparison fo  economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate;

s FEvaluated the sensitivity analysis performed
by management in respect of the key
assumptions such as discount and growth
rates to ensure there was sufficient
headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on
the fair value calculation;

» Engaged internal and external valuation
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment in associate and
subsidiary company

We draw reference to note 4 to the
standalone financial statements.

The Company has investment in equity
instruments of its associate, Jindal United
Steel Limited and subsidiary company, PT.
Jindal Stainless Indonesia amounting to
¥ 175.05 crores and ¥ 54.68 crores,
respectively. Such investments in  the
aforesaid associate and subsidiary company
are accounted for at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27, Separate Financial Statements.
The Company assesses the recoverability of
these  investments when  impairment
indicators exist, by comparing the fair value
{less costs of disposal) and carrying amount
of the investment as on the reporting date in
accordance with Ind AS 36, Impairment of
Assets.

The aforesaid investments are not traded in
any recognized stock exchange(s). The fair
values of the investments are determined by
a management-appointed independent
valuation specialist based on discounted cash
flow ('DCF) method. The process of
computation of fair wvaluation for such
investments using DCF method is complex.
Management's assessment of the fair
valuation of investment requires estimation
and judgement around assumptions used.
The  key  assumptions underpinning
management's assessment of the fair
valuation include, but are not [imited to,
projections of future cash flows, growth rates,
discount rates, estimated future operating and
capital expenditure.

The application of significant judgment in this
matter required substantial involvement of
internal and external valuation experts on the
audit engagement,

Our audit procedures were focused on
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
that the carrying value of investments in the
associate, Jindal United Steel Limited and
subsidiary, PT. Jindal Stainless Indonesia are
not materially misstated. These procedures
included, but were not limited to, the following:

We obtained an understanding of
managemenf’'s processes and confrols for
determining the fair valuation of investments.
The understanding was  obtained by
performance of walkthroughs which included
inspection of documents produced by the
Company and discussion with those involved in
the process of valuation.

In addition to the evaluation of design and
testing the operating effectiveness of controls
implemented for identification of impairment
indicators and measurement of impairment
provisions, we also performed the following
procedures:

« Assessed the qualification and objectivity of
the management-appointed independent
valuation specialist io determine the fair
value of investments;

 Assessed the appropriateness of valuation
methodology used for the fair valuation
computation with the help of an auditor's
expert, and tested the mathematical
accuracy of management’s model,

+ Reconciled the cash flow projections to the
business plans approved by the Company's
management;

¢+ Challenged the management's assessment
of underlying assumptions used for the cash
flow projecticns including the implied growth
rates, considering evidence available,
including the impact of COVID-19 pandemic,
where appropriate  to  support these
assumptions and our understanding of the
business;

Accordingly, assessment of impairment loss to | , Tested the discount rate and long-term

be recognised, if any, on the carrying value of growth rates used in the forecast including
investment made in the associate and comparison to economic and industry
subsidiary company has been considered to be forecasts, where appropriate;

a key audit matter for current year's audit. s Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed

by management in respect of the key
assumptions such as discount and growth
rates to ensure there was sufficient
headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on
the fair value calculation;
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont’d)

experts to obtain additional comfort on the
valuation technique used by management’s
valuation expert;

s Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether the significant
assumptions used in valuation of the
investments in the associate company and
subsidiary company are  considered
reasonable;

+ FEvaluated the adequacy and
appropriateness of disclosures in relation to
the investments in associate company and
subsidiary company, in the standalone
financial statements including the related
impairment indicators.

Recoverability of Minimum Alternate Tax | Cur procedures in relation to assessment of

(MAT) Credit

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has
recognised Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
credit amounting fo ¥ 77.65 crores, within
deferred tax assets. On that date, the
Company also has unabsorbed depreciation
amounting to ¥ 1,662.15 crores,

The recognition of a deferred tax asset in the
form of MAT credit is based on the
management's estimate of taxable and
accounting profits in  future, which are
underpinned by the Company's price
assumptions and business plans, and tax
adjustments required to be made in the
taxable profit computations, as per the
provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 (IT Act).
Estimating recoverability of MAT credit also
requires significant judgments, including the
timing of reversals of unabsorbed
depreciation.

Considering the materiality of the amounts
involved and inherent subjectivity requiring
significant  judgment involved in  the
determination of utilization of MAT credit
through estimation of future taxable profits,
this area was considered to be of most
significance to the audit and determined to be
a key audit matter far current year's audit,

MAT credit recognised as at reporting date
included, but were not limited to, the following:

s Obtained and updated our understanding of
the management’s process of computation
of future accounting and taxable profits of
the Company, and expected utilization of
available MAT credit within specified time
period as per provisions of the IT Act;

« Evaluated the design of and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls around
the preparation of wunderlying business
plans, future taxable profit computation, and
assessment of recognition of MAT credit at
year end,

» Reconciled the business resulis projections
to the future business plans approved by the
Company's board of directars;

s Challenged the management’s assessment
of underlying assumptions used for the
business results projections  including
expected capacity expansion and utifisation,
implied growth rates and expected prices
considering evidence available to support
these assumptions and our understanding of
the business;

» Tested the growth rates used in the forecast
by comparing them to past trends and to
economic and industry forecasts, including
the impact of COVID-18 pandemic, where
appropriate;

» Performed independent sensitivity analysis
in respect of the key assumptions such as
growth rates to ensure there was sufficient
headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on
the timing of reversal of unabsorbed
depreciation and utilisation of MAT credit;

« Tested the computations of future taxable
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd)

made in such computations with respect to
tax-allowed and tax-disallowed items, cther
tax rebates and deducticns available to the
Company, and tested the computation of
MAT liability in such future years, in
accordance with the provisions of the IT Act.

« FEvaluated the historical accuracy of the
estimates made in the prior periods with
respect to business projections and
aforesaid tax computations;

o Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s  projections and  tax
camputations;

« Based on aforesaid computations, assessed
the appropriateness of management's
estimate of likelihood of utilization of MAT
credit within the time period specified and in
accordance with the provisions of the IT Act;

* Engaged the internal tax experts to assess
the accuracy of MAT credit recognized in the
financial statements;

s FEvaluated the  appropriateness and
adeguacy of the disclosures related to MAT
credit in the standalone financial statements
in accordance with the  applicable
accounting standards.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

6. The Company’s Boeard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Managemeni and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, inciuding the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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Walker Chandiok & Co LL.P

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusicn, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the cverride
of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

s Caonclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn bhasis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Campany’s ability to continue as a
going concem. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fmdlngs :ncludmg any significant deficiencies in
internal contrel that we identify during our audit. :
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maiters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure |, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

17. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belisf were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying
standalone financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being
appeinted as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 14 May 2021 as
per Annexure |l expressed unmodified opinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(o]
~—

i. the Company, as detailed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term cantracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021,

iii.  there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

v, the disclosure requirements relating to heldings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2018, which are not
relevant to these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

s Mot

Rajni Mundra
Partner

s
Membership No.: 058644 %\/
UDIN: 21058844AAAACHIB 35 ACCE

Place: New Dealhi
Date: 14 May 2021
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jindal Stainless
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure |

Based cn the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that;

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment under which property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard tc the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain
praperty, plant and equipment were verified during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) The tifle deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head
‘Property, plant and equipment’} are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year, except for geods-in-transit and stocks lying with
third parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have
been obtained by the management. No material discrepancies were noticed on the
aforesaid verification.

(i~ The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or ather parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii){(a), 3{ii)){b} and
3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) In our epinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 in respect
of investments, guarantees and loans. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act in respect of loans,
guarantees and security and any transaction covered under section 186 of the Act in
respect of security.

(V) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) as applicable, with
regard to the deposits accepted. According to the information and explanations given fo
us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in this regard.

(viy  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products and services
and are of the opinicn that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{(vii}(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they become payable. ;
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Annexure | {o the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jindal Stainless
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont’d)

(b)

Chartered Accountants

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are

as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Aot Amount Period to
Name of Nature of Z paid under | which the Forum where dispute
Statute dues protest amount is pending
crores)
(¥ crores) relates

The Central | Central 2.35 0.47 | Financial year | Additional
Sales  Tax | sales tax 2013-2014 and | Commissioner of
Act, 1956 2014-2015 Commercial Tax
The Central | Central 0.43 0.09 | October 2015 | Additional
Sales Tax | sales tax to March 2016 | Commissioner of
Act, 1956 Commercial Tax
The Central | Central 1.64 316 | April 2016 to | Additional
Sales  Tax | sales tax June 2017 Commissioner of
Act, 1956 Commercial Tax
The Odisha | Value 2292 - | Financial year | Hon'ble High Court of
Value Added | added tax 2013-2014 and | QOdisha
Tax Act, 2014-2015
2004
The COnssa | Entry tax 97.43 19.96 | October 2006 | Hon'ble High Court of
Entry Tax to Cdisha
Act, 1999 September

2010
The Orissa | Entry tax 57.18 20.96 | Financial year | Hon'ble High Court of
Entry Tax 2013-14  and | Odisha
Act, 1999 2014-15
The Orissa | Entry tax 78.24 53.26 | October 2010 | Hon'kle High Court of
Entry Tax to March 2013 | Odisha
Act, 1999 and Aprl 2015

to March 2017
The Orissa Entry tax 0.10 0.10 | April 2008 to | Additional
Entry Tax September Commissioner of
Act, 1999 2006 Commercial Tax
The Customs | Customs 7.97 0.80 | Financial vyear | Customs Excise and
Tariff Act, duty 2012-2013 Service Tax Appellate
1975 Tribunal
The Customs | Customs 1.70 0.13 ! Financial vyear | Customs Excise and
Act, 1962 duty 2014-2015 Service Tax Appellate

Tribunal

The Customs | Customs 0.90 0.84 | Financial year | Commissioner of
Act, 1962 duty 2014-2015 and | Customs

2015-20186
The Central | Central 1.30 1.30 | Financial vyear | Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise 2006-2007, Service Tax Appeilate
1944 duty 2007-2008 and | Tribunal

2008-2009
The Central | Central 0.50 0.05 | September Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise 2006 to August | Service Tax Appellate
1944 duty 2011 Tribunal
The Central | Central 0.26 0.02 | June 2007 tfo | Commissioner {Appeal)
Excise Act, | excise December of CGST, Central Excise
1944 duty 2007 and Customs




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Jindal Stainless
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

Chartered Accountants

EhER Amount Period to
Name of Nature of (% paid under | which the Forum where dispute
Statute dues crores) protest amount is pending
(¥ crores) | relates
The Central | Central 0.30 0.03 | May 2008 to | Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise March 2009 Service Tax Appellate
1944 duty Tribunal
The Central | Central 0.22 0.02 | Financial year | Commissioner (Appeal)
Excise Act, | excise 2012-2013 to | of Central GST, Central
1944 duty 2013-2014 Excise and Customs
The Central | Central 20.33 December Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise 2012 Service Tax Appellate
1944 duty to February | Tribunal
2014

The Central | Central 0.22 - | April 2014 to | Assistant Commissioner
Excise Act, | excise June 2017 of Central GST and
1944 duty Central Excise
The Central | Central 3.25 0.24 | January 2013 | Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise to January | Service Tax Appellate
1944 duty 2014 Tribunal
The Central | Central 0.08 - | April 2011 to | Commissioner{Appeal)
Excise Act, | excise October 2016 of Central Excise &
1944 duty Service Tax
The Central | Central 0.10 - | Financial year | Commissioner(Appeal)
Excise Act, | excise 2012-2013 and | of Central Excise &
1944 duty 2013-2014 Service Tax
The Central Central 0.05 - | May 2008 to | Commissioner(Appeal)
Excise Act, excise March 2013 of Central Excise &
1944 duty Service Tax
The Central | Central 0.02 0.02 | Financial vyear | Customs Excise and
Excise Act, | excise 2013-2014 Service Tax Appeliate
1944 duty Tribunal
The Central | Goods 7.48 - | Financial year | Joint Commissioner of
Goods and | and 2017-2018 Commercial Tax
Services Tax | service tax
Act, 2017
Income-tax Income- 0.97 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2003-2004 | Delhi
Income-tax Income- 3.01 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2004-2005 | Delhi
Income-iax Income- 7.26 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2005-2006 | Delhi
Income-tax Income- 8.69 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2006-2007 | Delhi
Income-tax Income- 3.59 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2007-2008 | Delhi
Income-tax Income- 0.83 - | Assessment Assessing officer
Act, 1961 tax year 2007-2008
Income-tax Income- 2.08 - | Assessment Disposed off by Income
Act, 1961 tax year 2007-2008 | tax Appellate Tribunal

during the year. Further

appeal yet not done.
Income-tax Income- 4.47 - | Assessment Hon'ble High Court of
Act, 1961 tax year 2008-2009 | Delhi
[ncome-tax [ncome- 0.09 - | Assessment Assessing officer
Act, 1961 tax year 2009-2010
Income-tax Income- 3.23 - | Assessment Disposed off by Income
Act, 1861 tax year 2009-2010 | tax Appellate Tribunal

during the year. Further
appeal yet not done.




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Jindal Stainless

Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd)

(viii)

(ix)

{xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Chartered Accountants

Amount Amount | Period to
Name of | Nature of (@ paid under | which the | Forum where dispufe
Statute dues crores) protest | amount is pending
(T crores) | relates

Income-tax Income- 0.08 - | Assessment Assessing officer
Act, 1961 tax year 2010-2011
Income-tax Income- 0.46 - | Assessment Disposed off by Income
Act, 1961 tax year 2010-2011 | tax Appellate Tribunal

during the year. Further

appeal yet not done.
Income-tax Income- 0.21 - | Assessment Commissionar of
Act, 1961 tax year 2010-2011 | Income-tax (Appeals)
Income-tax Income- 19.47 - | Assessment income-tax  Appeliate
Act, 1961 tax year 2011-2012 | Tribunal
Income-tax Income- 18.20 - | Assessment Income-tax  Appellate
Act, 1961 tax year 2012-2013 | Tribunal
Income-tax Income- 14.34 - | Assessment Income-tax  Appellate
Act, 1961 tax year 2013-2014 | Tribunal
Income-tax Income- 12.99 - | Assessment Income-tax  Appellate
Act, 1861 tax year 2014-2015 | Tribunal

The Company has nct defaulted in repayment of lcans or borrowings to any bank or
financial institution or any dues to debenture-holders during the year. The Company has
no loans or borrowings payable to government during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of term loans for the purposes
for which these were raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer/
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

Mo fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid by the Company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 187 of the Act read with Schedule V to the
Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Cempany. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements efc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of share warrants. In respect of
the same, in our opinicn, the Company has complied with the requirement of section 42 of the
Act and the Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. During the year, the Company did not
make preferential allotment/ private placement of fully/partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors
or persons connected with them covered under section 192 of the Act.




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Jindal
Stainless Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure ll

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Jindal Stainless Limited (‘the
Company’} as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance
Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statemenis

Our responsibility is to express an cpinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
QOur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
an the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with- > erally accepted accounting
S TRRNDIO
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor's Repor

Stainless Limited on the standalone financia
31 March 2021 (cont’d)

principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reascnable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditicns, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with
reference 1o financial statements and such controls were cperating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

: L4 ') S -
Rajni Mundra ':f '-'!‘ e

Partner \ 5 5
Membership No.: 058644 %, \,;/
D A

UDIN: 21058644AAAACHD6

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 May 2021



JINDATL STAINLESS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(AIl amounts in ¥ erores, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
Bt 31Macch 2021 31 March 2020
ABSETS
Non-current assets
Property, phut and equipment 2 565272 5.938.28
Capital work-in-progress 2A 1922 9.13
Intangihle assets 3 2601 3tz
Intangible assets under development 3A 530 2.4}
Financial assels
[uvestments 4 490.56 48693
Loans 5 110.98 L10.08
Other hnancigl assets 6 0.76 224
Tncome-tax assets (net) 7 14.86 2541
Orther non-current assets ] 10H.30 50.69
Current assels
Inventodes 9 246691 233041
Fmancial assets
Investiments 4 0.58 233
Trade receivables 16 981.66 7794
Cash and cash equivalents il 30.23 13.93
Bauk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 3895 2845
Loans 5 1140 11.27
Other financial assets & 6832 7648
Other current assets 8 191.69 207 20
Total 16,264.67 10,107.96
EQUITY AND LIABIHLITIES
EQUITY
Fquity share capital 13 9743 9745
Other equity 14 3,055.33 2,559.87
LIABILITIES
Nan-cugrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 2,545.90 2,715.57
Other financinl lizbilities i6 11075 10248
Provisions 7 10.72 239
Deferred tax liabilines {net) 18 490.60 217.87
Other non-corrent habilites 19 27919 32405
Current liabilities
Fumancial Liabilities
Berrowmgs 20 319.62 39736
I'madde payables 2t
Total outstandmg dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 117.73 §7.28
Tonal oustanding dues of creditors other fhan micrs enterprises and small mterprises 235749 2345.20
Other financial liabilities 16 FO048 1,038.60
Other current liabilines 19 17946 21178
Provssions 17 053 0.63
Total 10,264.67 10,107.96
Summary of significant accounting policics 1
The summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory mformation are an integral part of these fnancial stalements.
This is the Balance Sheer referred 1o i our report of even date, Forand on behalf of the Board of Direcrors

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP '6\-\; i Abhyuday Jindal
Chartered Accountants / 'y Managing Director Whele Time Difector
TN 081076N /NS00013 /:.A DIN: 07290474 DIN: 47302532
- ™~ ‘ 2

+ .
R {
Rajni Mundra

Parimer
Membership Na.: 0586-44

Navneet Raghuvanshi

Company Secretary

Place: New Delin
Date: 14 day 2021




JINDAL STAINLESS LEMITED
Statement of Profit and Laoss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Alk amouants in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 3 March 2020

INCOME

Revenue from operations 22 11,679.14 12,3201

Other income 23 +2.30 36.08
Total 11,721.44 12,357.09

EXPENSES

Cost of matenals consumed 7,293.69 7,643.88
Purchases of stock-mn-trade 236.95 H87.86
Clanges mn inventores of hmshed goods, work in progress and stock-m-trade 24 {08.81) {7003}
Employee benefits expense 25 148.79 147.57
Finance costs 26 $63.70 566.89
Depreciation and amorhsaton expenses 27 375342 HI8.86
Qther expenses 28 2,702.67 203603

Total 11,120.41 12,121.04

Profit before cxceprional items and tax 601.03 236.95

Lxceptional items 37 99.39 8.31

Profit before tax 700.42 244,36

Tax expense
Current tax = .
Deferred tax 2% 27350 91.48

‘Total tax expease 272,50 9148
Profit for the year 427.92 152.88

Other compreheinsive income

[ters that will not be reclassificd to proft or loss

Re-mensurements of defined employee benefit plans 0.66 {1.55)
lncome tax effect on above {0.23) 0.54
Total other comprebensive income 0.43 (1.01)
Taotal comprehensive income for the year 428.35 151,87
Earpings per share (in ¥) 30
Basic 8.78 3.16
Diluted 8.65 316
Summary of significant accounting policics 1

The surnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This 15 the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Abhyuday Jindal

Chertered Accountants T Mamaging Direcior

FRN 01076N/N500013 DIN: 07290474 DIN: 07302332

»
2 5
Rajni Mundra

Partner
Membership No.: 058644

~ (29
MNawneet Raghuvanshi
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhy
Date: 14 May 2021

NEW
DELHI
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JINDAL STAINEESS LIMITED
Cask Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 11)

Summary of significant aceounting policies

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before ax 0042 ZH.36
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amoerisation expenses 37542 408.86
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipmenc (net) (0.47) {0.28)
loterest income on investments (3.97) {2.88)
Liability no longer required, written back {2.76) (63.67)
Amortisation of deferred revenue (12.63) (12.66)
Taterestincome on financial assers measpred ar amortised cost {1.27) {L21)
Umeinding of disconnt on financial asset measured at amortised cost 149 L6l
Bad debts written off and allowance for expected credit losses 16.52 L16
interest mcome on fixed deposits, recervables and ncome mx refund {16.48) (18.79)
Dividend income (1.67) 2
Net uiirealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (71.68) 8279
Finance costs 463.70 566.89
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,444.62 1,206.18
Movement in working capital
Trade receivables (237.35) 93.90
Inventories (136.50) (286.25)
Other fnancial assets 100.51 (101.03)
Other assets 8.95 (5.13)
Trade payables 80.04 82.29
Other financial liabilitres 77.99 115.85
Other liabilities (61.90 10.39
Provisions 1.69 2.09
Cash flow from operating activities post working capilai changes £,284.05 1,124.27
Income-tax paid (net of refund) 10.56 (1.23)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,294.61 1,123.64
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, piaut and equipment and intangible assers (17043} (170.64)
{including capital work in progress and intangible asscts under development)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ecuipment +30 2159
Dividend received Lo7
Trterest recetved 17.52 8.85
Proceeds from sale of investment 231 -
Investment m deposits with banks (neg) (9.02) (21.83)
Net cash used in investing activites (B) {153.65) {162.03)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from msue of shares/warrnts 5372 2858
Repayment of short tenin borrowing (net) {7807 (79.10)
Repayment of long-1erm borrowings (1,00-1.86) (1.212.87)
Proceeds from long-term bomowings 250,00 §00.00
Payment of lease Lability (3.27) o1
Interest paid (32116 (483.57}
Net cash nsed in financing activities {C) {1,106.64) (950.97)
Nert changes in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C) 34.32 1004
Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the year (refer note 11) 13.93 3.89

50.25 15.93

The summary of significant zecounting policies and other explanatory information are an integeal part of these fnancial statcments.

This 15 the Cash Flow Starement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charrered Accountants
TFRN Q0L076N /N300013

Ro.z‘., NV !
Rajni Muadra

Partner
MMembership No.: 0538644+

Place: New Delhi
Bater 14 May 2021

Ior and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Abbyuday Jindal
Mlanaging Director
DIN: 07290474

i

mar’Khulbe
e Time Dircctor

1IN 07302532

o P,
@’U‘v\—ﬁff
Navneet Raghuvanshi
Company Secretary



Jindal Stainless Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

(AL amounts in erores, wnlesy slated otherwire)

i)

Corporate information, basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies
Corporate information

Jindal Srainless Lirnited (“the Company”) is domiciled 2nd incozporated in India. Its equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) aad its Global Depository Shares are listed at the Luxemburg Stock
Exchange (LSE). The registered office of the Company is located at O. P. Jindal Marg, Hisar, ITaryana, Indiz. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacluring of stainless steel flat products in Austenide, Ferrtic, Martensitic and Duplex grzdes. The
product range includes Ferro Alloys, Stainless Steel Slabs, Hot Rolled Coils, Plates and Sheets, and Cold Rolled Coils and Sheets.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company. The Company has also prepared consolidated financial
staternents for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with Ind AS 110 and the same were also approved for issue by the
Bozrd of Directoss, along with these financial statements on 14 May 2021.

'The tinancial statements have been prepared on accrmal and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently
to all the periods presented in the financial statements. The finzncial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

¢ Cermin financial assets and liabilities measured ar fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
®  Defned benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

Significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset 1s treated as current when it is:

¢  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

®  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

e TItisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

®  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least rwelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other lizbilities as non-current.




Jindal Stainless Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amonnts in Lorores, wnless stated othermise)

b)

Deferred tax assets and Eabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilides.

Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascectained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilittes.

Property, plant and equipment
Revagrition and initinl measurement

Propesty, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost (if
capitalisation critezia arc met) and any atteiburable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits zttributable to such subsequent
cost associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance cos(s are recognised in statement of proft
or loss as incurred.

In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired on deferred payment basls, interest expenses included in deferred
payment is recognised as interest expense and not included in cost of asset.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefud lives)

Depreciation oa propesty, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Act,
computed on the basis of useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1T of the Act or technical evaluation of the property, plant and
equipment by the management which are mentioned below:

Tangible assets Useful life (years)
Buildings 2-60
Electrical installations 1-35
Continuous process plant and equipment 1-35
Railway sidings 15

Power line and bay extension 15-20
Furniture and fixnires 1-10
Vehicles 3-10

Office equipment 1-15

The resicual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished
or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets is calenlated on 4 pro rata basis as individual assets
with specific usefil life from the month of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been
sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

De-recognition

Anitem of propesty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon dispesal or when no
future economic benefits arc expected fram its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (caleulated




Jindal Stainless Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AL amonnts in crores, unless stated othermise)

<)

d)

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangibie assets ace
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurepient {amortisation and wsefid fves)

All intangible assers are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated nseful lives. The estimated vseful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the
asset.

Residual values and usefnl lives are reviewed at cach reporting date. The following useful lives are applied:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Mine development expenses {stripping costs) Over the period of expected duration of benefits
Software 5

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at least at the ead of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected nseful life or the expecred pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as approprate, and are tzeated as changes in accounting estimates.

De-recognition

Gains or losses adsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the cartying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows
{cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset ar the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its cazrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impaizment loss and is recognized in the statement of prafit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists then the
recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated
historical cost. Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

To determine value in-use, managernent estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures
are directly linked to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted zs necessary to exclude the effects of future re-organisations
and asset enhancements, Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating umit and reflect current market
assessinent of the time value of money and asset-specific risk factors.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 2 qualifying asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period af time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest calculated using the effective interest
method rhat an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Liligible transacrion/ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are adjnsted with the proceeds of
the borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is computed as
under:

¢ Raw matertal cost includes direct expenses and is determined based on weighted average method.

*  Stores and spares cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted zverage method.

¢ In case of finished goods, cost includes raw material cost plus conversion costs and other overheads incurred to bring the
goods to their present location and conditon.

® In case of stock-in-trade, cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses. Provision
tor obsolescence and slow moving inventory is made based on management’s best estimates of net realisable value of such
inventories.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation curvency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TINK or %) and are rounded to two decimal places of crores, which is also
the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recogmition.

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items as at reporting date are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value fn a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items mezsured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (*OCI’) or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respectively).
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Esacheange differences

As per the generally accepted accounting prnciples followed by the Company till 31 March 2016, exchange differences arsing on
rranslation/ settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of 2 depreciable asset were
adjusted to the cost of the asset. Exchange ditferences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items existing as on
31 March 2016 are acewmulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortised over
the remaining iife of the concerned monetary item. The Company has elected to continue with the said policy on exchznge
differences arising on long term foreign currency monetary items existing on 31 March 2016, as allowed under Ind AS 101.

For this purpose, the Company treats a foreign mooetary item as “long-term foreign currency monetary item™, if it has a term of
12 months or more at the date of its origination.

Right-of-use assets and lease Liabilities

As a lessee
Classfication of lease

The Company’s leased asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and plant ané machinery. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
confrol the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an ideatified asset (i) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (i) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Regognition and initial neasnresent of right-of nse assers

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases)
and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROTU assets and lease
liabilities inchzde these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Subsequent measnremeit of right-of wie asser

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amonnt of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initizl dicect costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile oof these leases. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(incheding in substance fixed payments) and vadable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the
liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.
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Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction berween market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurementi is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the lizbility takes place either:

*  In the principal marker for the asset or lability, or
®  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market pacticipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the assert in irs highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
besi use.

Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial results are categorized within the fair vzlue
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Queted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lizbilities

Level 2 — Valuation techaiques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Tevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement is Uncbservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition from sale of products and services
Recopuition

Sales (lncluding scrap sales) are recognised when control of products is transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and
are accounted for net of returns and rebates. Control of goods refers to the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits from goods. Sales, as disclosed, are exclusive of goods and services tax.

To determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent, the Company assesses whether it has exposure to the significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of logistics services, Revenue from rendering of logistic services provided to its customer
after the transfer of control of underlying goods is recognized on net basis i.e. after deducting the amount contractually payabie to
transporters out of the total consideration received and is recognized once the facilitation of such service is done as the Company
does not assume any performance obligation.

Income in respect of service contracts, which are generally in the nature of providing infrastructure and support services, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when such services are rendered. Customers are invoiced periodically {generally on

monthly basis).
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D

For each performance obligation identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the performance
obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If the Company does not satisfy a performance
obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this 15 the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is

required.

The Company recognises contract liabiliies for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports
these amonnts as other labilitics in the balance sheet. Similarly, if the Company satisfies a performance obligation before it receives
the consideration, the Company recognises either 4 contract asset or a receivable in its balance sheet, depending on whether
something other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

Mearurernent

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes). The
consideration promised inn a contract with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely
in future), or both. The sale of goods is typically made under credit payment terms differing from customer to customer and ranges
between 0-90 days. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are lazgely made on advance payment terms or with

credit term of not more than one year.

The transaction price is allocated by the Company to each performance obligation (or distinct good or service) in an amount that
depicts the amount of consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.

Periodically, the Company enters into volume or other rebate programs where once a certain volume or other conditions are met,
it refunds the customer some portion of the amounts previously billed or paid. For such arrangements, the Company only recognizes
revenue for the amounts it ultimately expects to realize from the customer. The Company estimates the variable consideration for
these programs using the most likely amount method or the expected value method, whichever approach best predicts the amount
of the consideration based on the terms of the contract and available information and updates its estimates in each reporting period.

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest
meome on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCT is calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Dividends

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is estabiished. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of past of the cost of the investment.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumeant and are
measured inttially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carrded at fair value through profit or loss which are
measured initially at fair value.
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If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transacton price, the Company accounts for
that instrument at that date as follows:

*  at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair yalue is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only dara from cbservable markets. The
Company recognises the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

s in ail other cases, at the measurement basis mendoned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Company recognises that deferred difference as a gain or
loss oaly to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (Including timc) that market participants would take into account
when pricing the asset or lability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and finsncial labilitdes is described below.

Financial assets

Classifteation and subsequent measuraient

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following catepories upon initial recognidon:

i Financial assets at amortised cost — a financial instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met
®  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
*  Contractual terms of the asset give rse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPT} on the principal ameunt outstanding.

After inutial measurement, such fnancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Etfective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. The future cash flows include all other transaction costs
paid or received, premiums or discounts if any, etc.

1. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates - Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements. On disposal of
these investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

i Financial assets at fair value
s  Investments in equity instruments other than above — All equity investuments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such election on an
instrzment by instrument basis, The classification is made on inital recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an cquity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recopnised in the other comprehensive lnceme (OCT). There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to profit or loss, even on szle of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

Fquity instruments included within the FVTPL category 2re measured at fair value with all changes recognised in profit
or loss.

s Derivative assets - All derivative assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL).
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De-resoguition of financial arsets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and labilites on initial recognition. After initial recogniton, no
reclassification is made {or financial assets which are equity instruments and financizl Iabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instmments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senioxr management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.
A change in the business model occurs when the Company either beging or ceases to perform an activity thart is significant to irs
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting perdod following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised pains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Financial hahbilities
Subsequent measurenent

After mitial recognition, the financial Labilitics, other than derivative liabilities, are subsequently measuced at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The effect of EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All derivative liabilities are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL).
De-recqgnition of financial Babilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When aq existing
tinancial liability is replaced by another from the samce lender on substantally different terms, or the terms of zn existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as the de recognition of the original Liability and the
recegnition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial abilities are offset and the net amonnt is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intendon o settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets except for those at FVI'PL are subject to review for impairment at each reporting date to identify whether there
is any objective evidence that 2 financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteriz to determine impairment
are applied for each category of financial assets.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECT) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost.

ECL 15 the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —
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e All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual tegms.

Trade receivables

i For debtors that are not past due — The Company applies approach required by Ind AS 109 “Financial Instrements’, which
requires lifefime expected credit losses to be recognised upon initial recognition of receivables. Lifetime CIL are the expected
credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of 2 financial instrument.

Life time expected credit losses are assessed and accounted based on company’s historical counter party default rates and
forecast of macro-economic factors, by dividing receivables that are not considered to be individually significant by reference
to the business segment of the counter party and other shared credir risk characteristics to evaluate the expected credit loss.
The expected credit loss estimate is then based on recent historical counter party default rates. The Company defines default
as an event when the financial asset is past due for more than 365 days. This definition is based on management’s expectation
of the time period beyond which if a receivable is outstanding, it is an objective evidence of impairment.

4. For debtors considered past due — any enhancement in the accrual done for expected credic loss on individually significant
receivables s made to recognise any additonal expected credit loss en amount recoverable. The Company writes off trade
recefvables when there is objective evidence that such amounts would not be recovered. Financial assets that are written-off
are still subject to enforcement activity by the Company.

Other financial assets

For recognirion of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been 2
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit sk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
asser. T make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet
date with the risk of a defauit occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit sisk since
initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit sk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since inidal
recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Post- employment and other employee benefits
Defined cantribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into an independent fund administered
by the government, for example, contribution towards Employecs” Provident Fund Scheme and Employees” State Insurance
Scheme. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after its payment of the fixed
contribution, which are recognised as an expense in the year that related employee services are received.

Dgfimed benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined on the basis of actuaral valuaton using the projected unit credit method. Gratuity fund is administered through Life
Insurance Corporation of India.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCT in
the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perods.
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p)

Other employee benefits
Long-rerm exeployee bensfits: Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within cne year from the balance sheet date
is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected
ta be availed by the cmployees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than
cne year after the balance sheet date is estimated based on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gams and losses arising from past experience and changes in achuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and
loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Other shori-termm benefits

Fxpense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during which
services are rendered by the employees.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is 2 present obligation, as a result of past events and when 2 reliable estimate of the
amount of ohligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When provisions
are discounted, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

e Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
*  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sertle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannaot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realizaton of income is virtually certain, relared asset is
disciosed.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pedod attdbutable to equity shareholders {after
deducting artributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding durng the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares ourstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of caleulating dilated earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease
earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.
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q) Taxes

Citrrent incone-tax:

Current income-tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorties. The fax rates and tax Jaws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countrdes where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income-tax relating to items recognised outside prefit or loss is recognised cutside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situatons in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions wheze appropriate,

Dferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax habilities ave recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis are reviewed at each balance sheet date and derecognized to the
extent it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be

realized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the undedying transaction either in OCI or directly in

equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 2 legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation anthority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit s recognized as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the Company will
pay normal income-tax during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recagnized as an asset,
the said asset is created by way of 2 czedit to the staternent of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entilement to the extent it is not
probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified pedod.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions
will be complied with.

When the graot or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss
over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to
an asset, it is recognised as deferred ncome and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related

asset.
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s) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Ldeutification of segpments:

In accordance with Tnd AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified
based on information reviewed by the Company’s management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. Results of the
operating segments are reviewed regularly by the management team which has been identitied as the chief operating decision maker
{(CODM), to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
finzncial information 1s available.

t)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term highly liquid
investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an

insignificant risk of change in value.

u) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type, or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(iv)  Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management has made in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements or that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowance for expected credit losses — The allowance for expected credit losses reflects manzgement’s estimate of losses
mherent in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Company’s estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derives from
past experience with similar receivables, current and historical past due amounts, dealer termination rates, write-offs and
collections, the monitoring of portfolio credit quality and current and projected economic and market conditions.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Fvaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses
the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different

from this judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic chsolescence that may change the utility of assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(ALl amonnts in Jeroves, snless stated otherwise)

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions such
as standard rates of inflarion, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Varation in these asswnptions
may signtficantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valnation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument.

Contingent liabilities — The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range of matters, which are
pending in various judsdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such
matters. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to
many uncertainties, including but not imited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and
the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, management consults with legal counsel and certain other
experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome
is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Standards issued but not yet effective

On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a natification, amended Schedule JIT of the Act. The
amendments revise Division T, T and TIT of Schedule TIT and are applicable from 1 April 2021, Some of the key amendments
relating to Division IT which relate to the Company are:

Balance Sheet:

& Lease liabilifies should be separately disclosed under the head “financial labilities”, duly distinguished as current or non-
current.

e (ertain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

»  Specified fermat for disclosure of shazeholding of promoters.

s Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset
under development.

® If the Company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, thea disclosure of details of where it has been used.

»  Specific disclosure under “additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements,
compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of inumovable property not held in name of the Company,
loans and advances to promoters, ditectors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami
property held etc.

Statement of profit and Joss:

*  Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual
currency specified under the head “additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial
starements.

e The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amonnes in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

3 Intangible assets
Particulars Computer software Mine development Total

expense (stripping
cost )

Gross carrylng ameount

As at 91 April 2019 48,61 14,38 62.99
Additions 10.30 - 10.30
As at 31 March 2020 58.91 i4.38 73.2%
Addibons 6.10 - 6.10
As at 31 March 2021 65.01 14,38 79.39
Accumulated amortisation

As at M April 2019 21,25 12.33 33.58
Arnortisation charge 7.85 0.74 8.59
As at 31 March 2020 29.10 13.07 42.17
Amortisation charge 10.47 0.74 11.21
Asg at 31 March 2021 39.57 13.81 53.38
Net carrying amount

As at 31 March 2020 29.81 1.31 3112
As at 31 March 2021 25.44 0.57 26.01

3A The Company has intangible assets under develepment amounting to T 5.50 crores as at 31 March 2021 (previous yeas: ¥ 2.40 crores)
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5 Loans Mop-current Cusrent
Asat Asat Asat As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 3t March 2020
Loans receivables considered good, unsecured
Security deposits 2119 3.04 316
Loan to related parry 85.28 55.80 836 811
Total 110,98 110.08 1140 11.27
Refer nate 46 for disclosure of Feir vabues in respect of financial sssets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses.
Other financial assets Non-current Current
Asal Asat As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Considered good, unsecured
Decivaive asset {foreign exchange forsard contracts) - - +41.51 30.83
Bank deposits with cemaming maturity of more than 12 months’ 0.76 224 - -
Expart benefit receryvables 23.07 26.03
Other receivables - 174 19.62
Total 0.76 2.24 68.32 7648
* T{.76 crores (previous year: T 224 crores) is under lien with banks.
Refer note 46 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial assets measured ar amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
Income-1ax assels (net) MNon-current
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prepaid tases [net of provision for rax| 1486 2541
Towl 14.86 2541
Other assets Non-current Current
As ar As at Asat As at
3f March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 Macch 2020
Capiral advances 084+ 18.50 -
Prepaid expenses 649 7.98 LL.18 12,38
Advanees to vendors 10.00 12376 G878
Balances with statutory authorites 19.37 25.81 314 93.63
Other assers - - 0.61 2.38
Total 104.30 50,69 191,69 207.20
Tnventories As at Asgat
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
Ruw materials [including goods-in-teansit T 361,46 crares (previous year T 401,61 crores)) #3288 72800
Work in progress 976.97 766.26
Finished goods 485.54 59353
Stock-in-trade L5 5.3
Store and spares [including goods-in-transit ¥ 10.23 crores (previous year ¥ 1837 crores)| L7o.e? 23720
Tatal 2,466.91 2,330.41
lefer note 45 and 15 for infermation on inventaries pledged as security by the Company.
Trade receivables As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade receivables considered good, unsecured 981.66 71941
T'rade ceceivables - credit impuared 2332 9.25
Total 1,004.98 788.66
Less : Loss allowance (2337 {9.25)
Toral 931.66 779.41
Refer note 46(C.1)(h) (i) for detuils of expected credir loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
Reter note 46 For distiosure of Faic values in respect of financial asscts measuged at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses.
Refer note 45 and 135 for information on trade receivables pledged as security by the Company.
Cash and cash equivalents Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balances with banks 2497 291
Balances with banks in foreign currency 0.35 0.02
Bank deposits with onginal matunty of less than theee months* 9.36 5.32
Cheques on hand 15.52 740
Cash on hand 0.05 0.08
Total 50.25 15.93

* TBAD crores (previous year ¥ 444 crores) is under lien with banks. The Company has atso created bank deposit of  nil (previous year T 0.80 crores) for Debenture Redemption Rescrve

Reter note 46 For disclosure of fat values 1o respect of fingneial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected ceedir losses.
Refer note 45 for nformation on cash and cash equivalents pledged as security by the Compang.

Bank balances other than ¢cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits with angnal matariry of more than three month but residual matusity of less than rwelve aionths”

Total
* T32.16 crores (previous year T 22.05 croves) is undee lien with banks. The (jr,nrn[mny Tagalg

Refer nate 46 for diselosure of fair values in respect of financial assets s

Asat
31 March 2021

38.95

Asat
31 Maich 2020

2845

38.95

28.45

ted bank deposit of % nil (previous year T 640 crares) for Debenture Redemption Reserve.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
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13 Equity share capiral As at As ar
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Authorised
605,000,000 (previous year 6U5,000,000) Equity shares of ¥ 2 each 125.00 12100
170,000,000 {previous year 170,000,000 Preference shares of ¥ 2 each 3100 34.00
155.00 155,00
Fssued, subseribed and paid up
487,234,600 {presious year 487 234,600) ity shares of T 2 each fully paid ap 9745 9745
97.45 97.45
A Reconciliation of the number of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year As al As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares Mo, of Shares
Shares cutstanding at thie begmning of the year 457,234,600 479,221,660
Shares issued during the year
Allotment of equity shares on preferential basis (refer noe () below) 8,012,940
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 487,234,600 487,234,600
(i} During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company allotted nil equity shares (previous year 8,012.94H) ) having face value of T2 each 0 a prometer group entity (JSL Litaited) on prefesential basis

ata price of ¥ nil (previous year I 35.65, including premium of T 33.65 per share), nggregating to T nil { previous year T 28.57 crores).

(i) As on 31 March 2021, 8,802,167 Global Depository Shares ( 'G1238' ) {previous vear 8802167 GISs) with 17,604,334 undedying equity shares (previous year 17,604,334 equity shares) wese

outstanding. Fach G138 cepresents 2 underlying equity shares of the Company.

B Terms/rights attached to eguity shares
The Company has only one dass of equity shares having a {ace value of ¥ 2 per share. Lach shareholder 1s eligible for one vote per equaty share held [other than the shares represented by Regulation
5 Global Deposttory Shares 1ssued by the Company whose voung nights are subject to ceriam condittons and procedure as prescribed under the Regulaton 5 Deposit Agreement]. The Company
deciarcs and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors 1s subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the enswing Annual General Mecting and also
has equal nght in distibution of profit/ surplus m prportions to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
C Equity shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares are as under :
Name of the shareholder As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Equity holding No. of Equiry % halding
Shares Shares
Jindal Stainless (Hisar) Lirited 168,25+4,309 3454 168,284 300 3454
JEL Overscas TTolding Limited 0,905 424 1457 70,995,424 14.57
Kotak Special Situations Fund 28,376,673 582 27,481,027 5.64
D During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2021, in the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 168,284,309 cquity shares o Jindal Stainkess (Hisar) Limited pursuant to the
compasite scheme of arepngement refereed to in note 32(T). [a the aforementiomed perod of fyve years, the Company has neither allotted any bomss shates nor have any shares been bought back.
E Optonally convertible redeemable preference shares

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had allotted 142,830,637 0.01% Optionally Convertble Redeemable Preference Shares having face value of 2 each “OCRPS™) to the lenders
of the Company upon conversicn of the Funded Interest Term Loan T and the Funded Iinterest Term Loan 1T 4t a prece of 39,10 (ncluding premium of Z 37.10) per OCRPS aggregating to ¥
358,47 crores, on the terms as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (Refer note 15 and 38).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had redeenred the aforementioned OCRPS issued to the lenders at 2 price of  39.10/- per share {including premium of ¥ 37.10/- per sharc)
aggregating to ¥ 35847 crores.




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accovnting policies and other explanatary information for the year ended 31 March 2021
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14 Other equity

A Amalgamation rescrve
This reserve was ceeated in accordance with an approved scheme of amalgamation bebween Jindal Stainless Limited, Austeniric Creations Pyt Limited and -Inox Creations Pet

Limnited with effect from | Aprii 2003,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginming of the year 1.22 |22

Balance at the end of the year 1.22 122

B Foreign currency monetary items translation difference account

This reserve represents ummortised foreipn exchange differences arising on translnon of long term Forelgn currency monetary items.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginming of the year (13.39) {15.73)

Add: Accumulated duning the year 1.82 (i2.15)

Less: Amorntised during the year 1157 14.51

Balance at the end of the year - {13.3%

C Decbenture redemption reserve
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the amount standing to the eredit of Debenmure Redemption Reserve has been transferred 1o reinined carnings since the debentures

haye been redeemed

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginamg of the year 2442 3207
Less : Transfersed domng the vear to remined carnings 2442 765
Balance at the end of the year - 24.42

I} Sccuritics preminm
Represents the amount received mn excess of par value of securities,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Masch 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,080.88 1,033.91
Add : Securitres premium recerved on issue of equiry shares on preferential hasis - 2697
Balance at the end of the year L080.88 1,080.88

E Capital redemption reserve
Capiral redemphion reserve cepresents reserves created as per provisions of section 80 of Companies Act, 1936 on redempbion of 10.5% Redeemable Cumnulative Non
Convertible Preference Shares in the financial year 2003-04

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginming of the year Z20.00 20.00

Balance at the end of the year 20.60 20.00

F Retained carnings
Represents the undistributed surplus of the Company.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginmng of the year 14674 1,287.22
Add : Proft for the year 427.92 152.88
Add : Re-mensurements of defined eruployec benelit plans (net of tax) 043 (1.01)
Add : Transfer from debenture tedemption reserve 2442 7.65
Balance at the end of the year 1,8949.51 1,446.74

G Momey received against share warrants
Represents amounts received towards subscripnon of compulsonly convertible warrants*

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 3 March 2024

Balanice at the beginning of the year

Add : Subscription of compulsarly convertible share warmnts* 5372

Balance at the end of the year 5372 -

* On 29 September 2020, the Company has issucd and allotted 38,260,868 number of Convectible Fauity Wareants of € 2 cach, at a price of T 42,35, which includes 1 premium
of T 40.53 per convertible equity warrants, as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Hxchange Board of India {Tssuc of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, after teceipt of subscription money @ 33% of the 1ssue price 1e. T 1404 per warrant (including paid up amount of T 0.66 per warrant) to
Virtuous Tradecoep Privare Linuted, a promoter group entity and Kotak Specil Situanens Fund, an Alternate Iovestment Fund and a non-promoter ennity, on prefereatial
basis, to augment the cash flows of the Company for utilizaton towards mectng us Labiites, strengthening Inng term working capital and other general corporarc purposes.
The Relevant Date for the purpose of determination of minimum price for the issuc and allotment of convertible equity warrants as mentioned above was 18 August 2020,
being the date 30 days prior to the date of fis extra-ordinary general meeting:
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Ali amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

15 Borrowings

(i)

I

Ir

—

Secured

Debentures
Redeemable non-convertible debentures

Term loans

From hanks
Rupee term loans
Foreign currency loans

From others {Financial institagon)
Rupee term loans

Funded interest rerm loans
From others
Total

Unsecured

Inter corporate deposits [rom zelated party
Total

Less : Amount disclosed under the head Qther financial labilines - curcent
(Refer note 16)

Total

Nun-cerrent

Refer note 46 for disclosure of fir values n respect of fnancial liabilittes measured at amorused cost and analysis of their maturity profile.

Reconciliation of lizbilities arising from financing activities

The changes m the Company's liabibties ansing from Anancing actrvities can be classified as follows:

Particulars

Opening balance

Cash flows
Repayment
Proceeds

Mon cash:

Moratorun interest converted mte loan

Forcign exchange (gan)/loss on foreign currency loans

Amortisation of transachon costs m respect of financial Habilines cartied at
amortised cost

Closing balance

* Movernent in short ternm borrowings is presented on net basis

/ / //

S g N 4

As at As at
31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
400.00 197.68
400.0¢ 497,68
103075 1468.22
276.34
99.53 98.30
1,130.28 1,842.86
16463
C 16.63
1,530.28 2,357.17
1,050.00 900.00
1,050.00 940.00
3438 34160
2,545.90 2,715.57
Year ended Year ended
H March 20621 31 March 2020
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
borrowings borrowings borrowings borrowings
{Refer note 20 (Refer note 20)*
5,257.17 39756 360473 47297
(1,004.86) (78.07) {1,212.87) 79.19)
250,00 200.00 -
78.11 - -
59 047 2161 370
440 370 -
2,580.28 319.02 3,257.17 391.56

)"WJ{{ space bas been intentionally lft Lanke)
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JINDAL STATNLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Masch 2021
{All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

TY  Secured borrowings

A Debentures

Redeemnable non-convertible debentures 400.430 400.00

Redeemable in quarterly installments of:

- Ranging from T 13.30 crores to ¥ 13.40 crores during 2022-23 {three mstallments, ficst installment falling due on 31 July 2022}

- 2 15.00 erores cach dunng 2023-24 (four installments)

- T 20,00 crores cach dunng 2024-25 (four installments)

- ¥ 25.00 crores each dunng 2025-26 (four instaliments)

- 130,00 crores each dusing 2026-27 (four mstallments, last mstallment falling duc on 31 January 2027)

Seenred by:

- fiest pari-passu chasge by way of mortgage of Company's immovable properties and hypothecation of movable fixed assets both

2

present and future
second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/ or pledge of cureent assets namely fnshed goods, raw materals, work in
progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts and bills recervable, both present and future. Alse, refer note V for detmls of

additicnal securities.

i1y Redecmable non-convertible debentures * - 97.68

Fully redeemed during the current financial year

Total - Debentures 400.00 197.68

* Atats mecting held an 21 January 2021, the sub-comnuttee of the Board of Directors had considered and approved eady redemption of 2,500 Redeemable non- converible debentures
(secured} of face value ¥ 0.10 crores each, which weve listed on BSI Limited, having an cutstanding balance of T 52.08 crores which has been duly remited and fully redeemed within the
quarter ended 31 March 2021.

B Term loans
633.74 851.50

() Rupee term Inan
Repayable in quarterdy installments of:
- Ranging fram T 0.22 crares to T 0.33 crores each during 2021-22 (four installments)
- Ranging from ¥ 01.33 crores to ¥ 0.44 crores each during 2022-23 (four installments)
Z19.46 crores each dumng 2023-24 (four mstallments)
Rangmg from T 28.99 crores to T 40 50 crores each during 2024-25 (four installments)
Ranging from ¥ 40.50 crores to T 45 56 crores each during 2025-26 (four instaliments)
Ranging from ¥ 43.23 crores to T 47 07 crores each dunng 2026-27 (four installments)
Thereafter T 37.20 crores on 30 June 2027 and 7 28.47 crores on 30 September 2027
Secured by:
first pari-passu charge by way of mortgage of Company's immovable propertics and hypothecation of movable fixed assets both
present and firture and
second paci-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of current asscts namely Fnished goods, raw materials, work-in
progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts and bills recervable, both preseat and future. Also, refer note V for details of
additional securities.

(i) Rupee term loan 415.66 400.00

Redeemable i quarterdy installments of:
¥ 10.39 crores during 2021-22 (fwo installments)
Ranging from ¥ 10.39 crores to T 20.78 crores each dunng 2022-23 (four installments)
T 20.78 crores each during 2023-24 (four installments)
- Ranging from ¥ 18.70 crores to T 20.78 ceores each during 2024-25 (four installments)
- Ranging from ¥ 17.67 crores to T 18.70 crores each during 2025-26 (four mstallments)
- Ranging from T 17.67 crores to T 31.17 crores each during 2026-27 (four installments)
Secured by:
- First pari-passu charge by way of mortgage of Company's immovable properties and hypothecation of movable fixed assets both
present and future
- second pan-passu charge by way of hypethecation and/cr pledge of current assets namely finished goods, raw materials, work-in -
progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts and bills receivable, both present and future. Also, refer note V for detais of
additional securities.

(it = 337,48

2

Rupee rerm laan
Fully repaid during the cuerent finanaal year
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Pasticulars

v) Rupee term loan 100.00 g

Repayable in quﬁrtcrl}r msrallmenzs of
T 4.17 croges each first insallment falling due on 30 September 2022 and last installment Falling due on 30 June 2027 (24 equal
instailments)
Secured by:
first pare-passu charge by way of mongage of Company's immovable propertes and hypothecanon of movable Fixed assets both
present and furire and
second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of current assets namely fnished goods, aw matenals, work-in
progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts and bils recervable, both present and future. Also, refer note V for detals of
additional secuntes.
+) Foreign currency loan 276.34
[rully repaid during the cureent financal year
Total
Less: Unamortised portion of upfront fees and transaction costs
‘Total - Rupee term loans

1,149.40 1,855.32
19.12 12.46
1,130.28 1,842.86

C  Funded interest term loans

Funded interest term loans 16.63

Fully repaid during the current financial year

- 16.63
1,530.28 2,357.17

Total - Funded interest term loans

Taotal - Secured

D Inter corporate deposits from related party
Repayable in
one or more nstallments by 31 March 2023 or such other terms as may be mutually agreed between the Comprany and Jindal
Stanless (Hisar) Lumted.

1,050.00 900.00

Total - Unsecused 1,050.00 900.09

"The above term loans bear a floating rate of interest linked with State bank of Tndia marginal cost of funds based lending rate or benchmark of respective banks plus applicable spread

ranging from 20 basis points to 305 basis points.

"The inter corporate deposit from the related party is also a variable rate facility which s subject to changes as notified by lender from time 10 time in accordance with prevafling market
interest rates. As al 31 Macch 2021, the aforementioned deposits carry rate of interest of 1070,

V  Additional securities
Certain credit facilities / loans are also sccured by the following as well as alsc cross refereed m [V(A,B and C) respectively:

a. Unconditional and irrevocable personal guacantee of Me. Ratan Jindal;
b. Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of Jindal Stainless (Hisas) Limited;
<. Part-passu pledge of 197,701,936 cquity shares held in the Company by promoter group companies;
d. Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of promoter group companics to the extent of equity shares (93,384,215 equity shares) ;
c. Pledge over shares of the entities as listed below:
= PT. Jindal Stamnless Indonesia
« J8L Stainless FZE
* JSL. Group Holdings Pte. Limited
* Iherjindal S.L.
+ Jindal Coke Limited
¢ Jindal United Steel Limited

(Thés space furs becar intenteonmally ot blank)



JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and ather explapatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise siated)

16 Other financial Habilities Non-current Current
As ae As at Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current matunities of long term borrowings .38 34160
Interest acerued 24714 18211
Caprtal creditors - - 31.57 19.97
Secunty deposits 32.60 29.12 15.03 1347
Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon - - 0.19 0.20
Denvative liability - - 7.22 GL79
Lease hability 69.28 73.28 3.52 +.36
Other outstanding Frnanaal habilities 5.87 - 339.43 213.10
Total 110.75 102.40 700.48 1,038.60
Refer note 46 for disclosurc of fir vatues 1 respect of nuncial lisbilides measured ar amortised cost and analysis of theie matunty profiles.
17 Provisions Nea-current Cusrent
As ar Asal Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for emplayee benefirs (refer note ) 1072 9.39 .55 005
Tatal H.72 9.59 0.55 .65
18 Deferred tax Habiliies (net) Asat Asar
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A Deferred rax liabiliry arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,236.97 1,240.21
Frwancial assets and financial liabihines measured at amortised cost 26.63 1149
Total deferred tax Hability 1,263.60 1,251.70
B Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Expenses deductible on payment +7.84 3272
Allowance for expected credit losses 33.03 2063
Leatse fability 2614 2713
Brought forward lass funabsorbed depreciztion 588.34 869.68
Almsmum alternate tx credit entittement 7765 71.65
Total deferred (ax assets F13.00 1,033.83
Deferred tax liabilities (ner) 490.60 217.87
19 Other liabilities Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Advance from customers. - - 7377 125.78
Deferved revenue 216.23 2Z38.86 12.63 12.63
Oither ouistanding labilines * 32.96 65.19 Y3.06 7337
Total 279.19 324,05 179.46 211.78
* Includes statutory dues
20 Bosrowings (current) Asat Asat
31 March 2021 3L March 2020
Warking caprtal facilities From banks 31902 397.56
Total 319.02 397.56

Working capieal facilines are secured by first parri-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/or pledpe of corrent assets namely Finished goods, raw material, work in progress, consumable stores
and spres, book debts, bill receivable both peesenr and furure and second parri-passu charge by way of mortgage and/or hypothecation in respect of other movable and immovable properties

beoth present and Rrtuee of the Company.
ility tram bank includes cash credie facility and working capital demand loan amounting to ¥ 319.02 crores (previous year ¥ 397.4 crores) also secured by additionl securitics ag

Working capital b
meniioned in note 15(V).
Refer nate 46 for disclosuce of fair values in respect of financial Habilities measured at amortised cost and analysis of their manurity profiles.

21 Trade payables As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises (refer note A below) H7.73 87.28
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,357.49 2,345.29
Toral 2,475.22 2,432.57

A On the busis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have regrstered themselves under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act. 2006) and based on
the information available with the Company, dues disclesed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 at the year end are below:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i The prncipat amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach accounting year
Principal amount due 117.69 B7.26
Interest amount due 0.04 noz
(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in teams of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day duning each accounting year
(iif) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act B
(iv) Theameunt ur interest accrued :md Temaining .n1p11d ar the end of each dcmunung year D .\/' i 0.0+ 0.02

paid o the small enterprise, for the purpose of dlbd"d\\‘mce 484 deducnble Expendltu.re untlct dection 73
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounfing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in T crores, unless otherndse stated)

22 Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Sale of products

Manulfactured goods 11,165.06 11,301.04
Trading goods 259.36 500.72
1142442 11,810.76
Sale of scrvices
Job charges recerved 125.98 2235
Business suppaort services 66.08 77.30
192.06 319.55
Other operating revenue
Export benefits 46,4 98.72
Sale of gases 6.57 10.63
Laability no longer required, written back 276 63.67
Others 6.89 1674
G260 189.80
Total 11,679,14 12,320.11
23 Other income Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest mcome on:
Investments 397 2.88
Frxed deposits and other recervables .57 546
Trade recervables 213 9.89
loecome-tax refund 1.70 3.4
Financial assets measured at amortsed cost 1.27 1.21
Drvulend income 1.67
Profit on dispesal of property, plant and equipment (ner) 047 3
Insurance claim recewved 6.86 598
Others 11.58 8.12
Tatal 42,30 36.98
24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Masch 2020
Opening stock
Tansshed poods 593.53 467.05
Work in progress 766.26 216.24
Stock-un-trade 536 11.81
1,365.15 1,295.10
Closing stock
Firashed goods 485.54 29353
Waork i progress 976.97 T66.26
Stack-in-trade 143 536
1,463.96 1,365.15
Total (98.31) (711.05)
25 Employee benefits expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Saleries, wages, bonus and other benefits 13549 131.53
Contribution to provident and other funds 6.69 693
Staff wellaze expenses 6.61 9.08
Total 148,79 147.57
26 Finance cost Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 3¢ March 2026
Interest on berrowing 380.67 47842
Intcrest on lease Labilities 8.00 &40
Other borrowing costs 66.03 80.07
Total 463.70 566.89
27 Depreciation and amortisation expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[epreciation on property, phnt and equipment 349.68 38778
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 12,53 1244
Amartisation of intngible assets T 1121 8.59
Wplak 373.42 40886

Taotal




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED

Sunimary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in ¥ grores, unless otherwise stated)

28 Other expenses

Cansumption of stores and spare parts
Power and fuel

Labour processing and transportation charges
Repaws to buildings

Repaws to plant and machsnery

Job work expenses

Other manufacruring expenses
Iasurance

Rent

Rates and taxes

Legel and professional
Communication

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance

Director's mecting fees

Vehicle upkeep and maintenance
Auditor's remuaneration (tefer note a below)
Freight and forwarding expenses
Comumnission on sales

Other selling cxpenses

AMlowance for expected credit losses
Bad debts written off

Advertisernent and publicity
Miscellanecus expenses

Total

a. Payment to auditors (exchiding applicable taxes)
As statutory suditor
For other services
For reimbursement of expenses
Taral

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
56345 684.19
618.24 768.93
17248 193.40
5.25 8.82
28.35 26.62
808.86 761.83
14975 139.88
1421 1043
19.28 13.91
1.74 117
76.57 53.50
217 z19
4.00 53.18
1.21 337
0.25 0.22
.99 11.75
[)Xa .67
155.67 142.12
15.41 45.72
23.61 23.97
1407 1.08
245 0.08
110 .93
16.77 10.65
2,702.67 2.036.03
146 0.46
.12 n13
.03 0.08
0,61 0.67

b. Pursuanc to seciion 135 of the Act, the Company bas constinted 2 Corporate Social Responstbility (CSR) Comumittee which s required to formulate and recommend to the
Boazrd of Directors a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act. The gross
amount to be spent by the Company as per the himits of section 135 is ¥ nil {previous year ¥ wil)

(This space bas beew intentionally leit biank)




JINDATL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless othervise stated)

29 Income-tax Year ended Yeur ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
‘The income tax expense consists of the following:
Current fax -
Defersed tax
Relanng to ongnanon and seversal of tempormry differences 23250 9148
272,50 91.48
Tatal tax expense 272.50 91.48
Year ended Year ended

Reconciliation of tax expense applicable o profit before tax at the latest starutory

enacted tax cate in India 10 ineome-tax expense reported is as follows: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 700.42 244,36
Applcable mx rate for the Cosnpany 34094% 34.04%
Expected income-tax expense (4) 24475 85.39
Tax effect of adjustment to reroncile expecied income 12x expense
to reported IGCOME tax expense
Income exempred from) / expenses not deductible in gix 17.86 13.98
Income rocable ar dlifferent me [R =] (034
{nihers 03z (9.53)
Total adjugtments {B} 2175 6.00
‘Toral 1x expense (A+B) 272,50 91.48
Mavement in deferred tax assers and Habilides for the year ended 31 March 2021 -
Particulars Opening deferred Income tzx Income tax {expense} /| Movement Closing deferred
tax asset (expense) / credit | credit recognized in through other 1ax asset /
{Tability) recegnized in profit| other compsehensive equiry (lirhility)
or loss income
Peopecty, plant and equipment and intangible assers (1,240.21) 324 - (L,236.97)
Financial assets and financial labilises measured at amartised vase (1145} (15.14) - (26,63}
Lease Lability 2113 (.99 - 26.14
Brought forward bis losses and unabsarbed depreciation 869.68 (281.34) - J88.34
Irems deductbile on actual parment or setdement 3272 1533 (0.2%) 7.84
Allowance for expected credit losses 26.65 6.38 - 33.03
A lmimum aleeenare tax ceedit engrement T7.65 - = 7763
Net deferred tax asset / (Hability) {217.57) (272.50) 0.23 = (490,60),
Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2020 ;-
Particularg Opening deferred Income fax Iacame tax {expense} / Mgovement Closing deferred
ax asset / {expense) / eredit | eredit recogmized in through other 1ax asset /
{liabiliry) recagnized in profit| ather comprehensive equity (liabilizy)
or lass income
Traperty, plant and equipment and inrangible assers (1,220.11} (20.10) 124021
Furnel assets and fimuncral linblities measured at amortised cost (3.99) {15 (1143
Lease liabiliry - 2713 = 27.13
Broughr forward rax losses and unabsorbed deprecition 0819 16149 = 269.68
Ttems deductible on actual payment or serdement 287.01 (23429 0.54 059 ely)
Allowance for expecred credit loases 2482 L33 - 2665
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 7165 - - 5 7165
Net deferred Lux asset / (Hability) (126.39) (91.48) 0.54 0.9 (217.87)

FThis space e been intentianally 2fF Blank)




JINDAL STATNLESS LIMITED
Summary of sigaificant accounting policies ané other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in ¥ crores, unless othenwise stated)

30 Eamings per share (EPS) Year ended Year ended
30 March 202t 31 March 2020
Net profit for the year (in ¥ crores) far basic EPS 427.92 15288
Add- Interest expenses oa potential equity shares (in € crores) -
Net profit for the year {in ¥ crores) for dilirted EPS 427.92
‘T'otal shares gutstanding at the beginaing of the year {in numbers) 487,234,600 479,221,660
Add: Weighted average numbes of shares wsued dunng the year - 1,301,083
Weighied-average sumber of equity shares for basic EPS 487,234,600 483,512,743
Effect of di
Add: Weighted average number of shases outstanding on account of Optionally Convertible - 131,123,208
Redeermable Preference Shaces (OCRDS)*
Add: Weyghieal aventge number of shares outstanding on account of share warmnt 7,320,781 -
‘Weighted-average number of equiry sharcs for diluted EPS 494,555,381 614,635,951
Basic EPS (Amount in T) 8.78 316
Diluzed EPS (Amcunt in ) 8.63 3.16
* OCRPS are ano-dilunive in natuce
31 Disclosure as per Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclesure Reqairements) Regulations, 2015 and Secsion 186(4) of the Companies Act,
3
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Parziculars Amount Maximum amount Ampunt Maximum
outstanding outstanding during the  outstanding amount
year outstanding
dizring the year
Loans and advances in the narure of loans for business purpose to subsidiary company
a) PT. Jindal Srainless Indonesia 2064 064 27.00 2700
Loans and advances in the nature of loans for business puspase to associate company
by Jindal Unired Steel Limared 6700 67.00 &7.00 67.00
Tatal 93.64 93.64 94.00 94.00
P2etails of invesunents made are given in note §
32 Compuosite scheme of arraogement
1 Demerger
A The Composite Scheme of Arrangement (hereinafter refecsed ta as the ‘Scheme’) amongst the Company (nansferor company) and its three whally owned subsidiaries, namely, Jindal Stainless (Hisar) Limited
(JSHL), Jindal United Steel Limited (JUSL) and Jindal Coke Limited (JC1.) (resultant companies} under the provisions of section 391-304 rend with section 100-103 of the erstwhile Companies Acr, 1936 and
other refevant pravision of the Companies Act, 1956 and / or the Companies Act, 2013 was sanctioned by the Iion'ble High Court of Punjab and Harmana, Chandigeeh vide its owder dated 21 September
2015, amended <ile order dared 12 Qcrober 2015,
Section | and section 11 of the Scheme became effective on T November 23, operative from the appointed date Le. close of business hours hefore smudmght of 31 March 2014. Section 111 and section IV of
the Sicheme became effective on 24 September 2016 [Le. on recept of approvats from the Owssa Industrial Tnfeastructuce Development Comporrios (QIIDCO) far the transfer/grant of the cight w use of the
landd on which Hot Step Mill (HSA) Plant and Coke Oven Plants are Jocard, ro JUSL and JCL. respectively as specified in the Schemc], operative from the uppolnted date Le. close of business hours befare
midnight of 31 Aarch 2015,
B Pursuant to the Secdon 111 and Section [V of the Schene becoming effective:
(@) Business undertuking 2, comprising, inter atia, of the TISM plant of the Company, was tmnsferced to JUSL at a lump swn considertion of  2,412.67 crases; out of this T 215000 crores was seceived, and
apginst the bakince amount of T 262.67 crores, JUSL ssued and slintted to the Company:
175,000,000 0.03% non-cumulative compulsorly convertible praference shares (CCPS) having face value of T 10 each fupre tie year ended 31 Macc 2020
99,048,637 CCPS were allorted to the Company and converted it equal number of equity shaces of T 10 each as fully paid ar par and the bulance 63,634,063 CCPS have been presented as “Investmeat in
L.tH% Non-cumakatece compulsondy convertible preference shares™ (Refer note 4)], and
87,673,311 1% non-cumulative non-convertble cedeenuble preference shares baving face walue of T 10 each, which have been allareed £ the Company
{d} Busimess undertaking 3, comprising, inter alia, of the Coke Oven plant of the Company, was founsferced 1o JCL at a lump sum considertion of ¥ 49265 crares; aut of this ¥ 375.00 crares was received and
agaunst the babince amcunt of T 117.63 crozes, JCL issued and aliotted to the Campany,
- 26,000,000 £.01% non-comulacsve CCPS having face value of T 10 each upto the year ended 31 March 2020,
8,382,432 CCPS were allotted to the Company and converred into equal number of equity shares of Z 10 each fully paid at par During the year, the Company converted the balance 17,617,568 CCPS initially
allatted, into equal mimber of " 1R non-cumulative nen-convertble redeemable preference shates having face value of ¥ 10 each Fully paid at par” (Refer note A, and
- 91,647,073 10P© nen-cumulative non-convertble redeemable preference shares having face watue of ¥ 10 each, which have been allotted to the Campuny.
I1 Merger
Ar its meeting helil on 29 December 2020, the Beard of Dicectors of the Company cansidered and approved a Composite Scheme of Armngemenr (Scheme'} pursuant 1o Sections 230w 232 and other
teltvant provisions of Compandes Act, 2013, amongst the Company (Amakmmarsd Comproy), Jindal Seainfess (Fisar) Limdred, JSL Lifestyle Limitec, JSL Media Limited, Jmdal Stainkss Corpomte
Managpment Services Private Limited (amalgamating companies) and Jindal Lifestyle Limited {resulting company). The aforementioned schema is subject 1o necessary starutory and regulatory approvals under
applicable aws, mcluding approval of the National Company Law Trbumal in Indiz which is currendy awaited
33 Due to outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) which has been declared as a pandenuc by the World Health Organization and subsequent lock down ordered by the Ceatml and Stire
Govemnment(s) in India, the manufictutng faclities of the Company remained suspended from 25 March 2020 6l 04 May 2020, The Company in compliance with the necessary instauctions/guidebines,
tesumed its operations from 05 May 2070 in a phased manner, while ensuring health and safety of all the smkehalders.
This sirusticn resulted in rempomey disturbance m the economic activides through interruption in mansfcturing process, disption in supply chain, erc, for the Company dunng the year ended 31 Alacch
2021, Further, the recent second wave of COVID-19 has resulred in partial lockdown/restiction m various states. However, the Company is closely monitoriag the impact of the aforernentioned pandemic
end believes that thece will nor be any advesse impact on the long tecm operations, financial position and performance of the Company.
M Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be sxccuted on capital account and nar providsd for {ner of advances) is 2 73484 croces {previous year T 5018 crores).
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35 Revenue from contracts with customers
A Disaggregation of revenue

‘The Company has performed a disaggregated snalysis of revenues considenng the nature, amount, smmg and uacertainty of tevenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by geography
and aming of recognition.

Revenue from operations Year ended 31 March 2021
Gaods Services Other operating Tatal
revenue

Revenue by geography

Domestic 923812 192.06 13.46 9,443.64
Export 2,186.30 - - 2,185.30
Total 11,424.42 192.06 1346 11,629.54
Revenue by time

Revenue recognised at point in time 11,437.88
Revenue recognised over ome 192.06
‘Total 11,629.94

* Qther operating revenue amounting to  49.20 croves in the nature of export incentives and labilides no longer tequired written back is not in the scope of Tnd AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers'. | fence, not included 1n the table.

Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations Goods Services Other operating Total
revenue®

Revenue by geography

Domestic 9,085.96 319.55 2741 9,432.92
Export 2,724 80 - 2,724.80
Total 11,810.76 319.55 27.41 12,157.72
Revenue by time

Revenue recogrised at point i time 11,838.17
Revenue recognised over time 319.55
‘Total 12,157.72

* Other operating revenue amounting to T 162.39 crores in the nature of export incentives and habilities no longer required written back is not in the scope of Ind AS 115 'Revenue from
contrcts with customers’. Hence, not included in the table.

B. Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included 1n the contract habiity balance at the beginning of the period 12578 111.92
Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied {or partially satisfied) in previous periods - -

C. Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Description As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from customers . 7377 125.78
D. Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contract price 11,820.08 12,353.77
] &ss: Ihscount, rebates, credits ete. 260.14 196.05
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 11,629.94 12,157.72

(This space has been futentionally loft blank)
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Contingent liabilides As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Demands from statutory and regulatory authorities

Sales tax, value added tax and entry tax™# 110.79 110.79
Excise duty, custom duty, service tax and GST # H.70 17.08
Tncome-tax 99.96 100.31
Demand from office of the Dy, Dicector of Mines, Jajpur Road Carcle, Qdisha on account of mining of excess quantity of chrome 77.33 7753

ore over and above the approved quantity under mining plan/scheme

- Royalty under the Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Act, 1957, rural infmstructure and sotig-economic +.80 5.13
development tax under the Onssa Rural Infeastoucture and Socio-Heenomec Development Act, 2004 and Water tx under the Orissa
Irngation Act, 1959

Corporate guarantee piven to banks aganst credit facthnes / financial assistance availed by [mdal Stainless (Hisar) Liouted amount 2,940.36 337811
for mcilitics outstanding fread with note 32(T)|

3,278.14 3,688.95

* The Company had challenged the legahity of Onssa Entry Tax Act, 1999 before the Hon’ble Supreme Court. The order dated 09 October 2017 of Divisional bench of the
How'hle Supreme Court read wath the order dated 11 November 20116 of Nine Judge Beach of Hon’ble Supreme Court, decided same of the tssues and granted oppormnity to the
petitioners for filing revival petitton within 30 days for deciding the issue of discrimination under Article 30-4H) a5 per law laid down by Nine Judges Bench of the Flon’ble
Supreme Court. The Company has filed revival petition before the 1Ton’ble High Court of Orissa on the ground of discriminarion wader Article 304(a), as per the dicection of the
Ton'ble Supreme Court. However, interest/penalty (if any) till the decision of the Ton'ble Supreme Court has been stayed by 1Ton’ble 1Tigh Courr of Orissa o three separate wrst
petitions filed by the Company on the issue exclusively on the legatity of wmposing inrerest under the Orissa Entry Tax Acr, 1999 and therefore, liability, if any, in this regard wall
be recognised when this matter is finally settled/determined by the Hon'ble High Court of Orissa,

# Amount includes basic, interest and pemalty as demanded by the concerned authority in the relevant case.

Income-tax

Contingent labilities for income-tax specified above, awer afin, includes Z 45.54 crores pertaining to Assessment years 2012413 1o 2014-153 for which the management daes not
expect any cash outflow since the Company has sulficient anabsorbed depreciation to set off from disallowance, if any, that may arse on account of adverse ruling by higher
authierines in relation to the aforemenuoned demands. Having said that, the managerent s fasrly confident of 2 favourable outeome for the ongoing demands,/ liiganans on all
the aforementioned years.

Exeeptional items Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2024
Gamn {net) on translenon/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items 75.07 504
Gam/{loss) on fair valuation and settlement of denvanve contracts 33.89 (27.62)
Amortisation of debit balance m foreipn currency monetary item rranslaon ditterence account (11.57) (14.51)
99.29 8.31
Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had exercised its right to redeem OCRPS and accordingdy, aggregate amount of ¥ 55847 crores was paud to the OCRPS
holders towards redemption of these OCRPS along with applicable recompense of ¥ 221.01 crores.

Puring the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had successfully exited CDR after discharging the recompense liability of 2 27475 crores (% 221.8H crores on OCRPS and
balance on other CIOR Loans) i cash as determined in accordance with RBI’s Master Circulae on Corporate Debr Restructuring: State Bank of Indir, in 1ts capacity of Momtoring
Instiiminon and on bebalf of CDR lenders 1ssucd no objection certificate (NOC) conbraung formal exit of JSL from CDR effectve from 31 Maech 2019,

N S/
Wéfﬂmﬂa wally loff k)
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3% Derivative contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as on 31 Masch 2021 for hedging foreign currency risks:

Mature of derivalive Typre 31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
Mo. of contracts Foreign currency No. of contracts Fareign currency
(in million) (in million}
Forward covers
USIY/INR Sell 8z S179.94 70 S182.10
EUR/USD Sell 51 €75.25 25 £47.00
USD/INR Buy 3 Sti2.80 289 $79.86
40 Employee benefits
A Defined ¢ontribution plans
‘The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to defined contribution plans for the year is as below: Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2620

Company's contriburion o provident fund 573 EY
Company's contriburion to employee welfare fund 0.26 0.27
Company's contribution o national pension scheme 0.62 .69
Company's cantribution to employee's state msumnce scheme 0.08 0.12
Total 6.69 6.95
B Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
(i} Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets Asat As at
31 Masch 2621 3L March 2020
DPresent value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year i+19 13.38
Less: Fair value of plan assets at the end af the year 11.22 10.70
Net iiability recognised in the balance sheet 3.27 2.68

(if) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet As at As at
3t March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 13,38 10.31
Transfer in/out of employees berween group companics 056 0.21
Current service cost L6l L.66
loterest cost 8.91 0.79
Benefits pasd (1.24) (1.4
Actuarial (gain) /loss on ebligaton (0.73) 145
Present valuc of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year .49 13,38
(iii) Movement in the plan asscts recognised in the balance sheet As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 10.70 9,96
Hxpected retum on plan assets 0.73 77
Acruarial (loss) For the year on plan asset 007 (0.10)
Emplayer caneributions L1o 111
Benefits patd (1.24) (1.04)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 11.22 10.70
The Company's plan assets primarily comprise of rjuatifying insumnce policies issued by Lifc Insurance Corporation of India.
{iv) Actuarial gain/(less) on plan assets Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Expected nterest mcorne 0.73 0.77
Actml income on plan asset (.66 0.67
Actuarial gain/(loss} for the year on plan asset (0.07) (0.10)
(v) Expense recognised in the siatement of profit and loss consists of:
Employee benefit expenge Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cureent service Cost 161 1.66
Net interest cost (.18 002
179 1.68
Other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Acarial (gain) /loss arising from chanpes m financial assumptons 0.03 1.28
Actuarial (gain) /loss arising from expenence adjustments (0.76) 017
Actuarial gam/(loss) en plan asser {0.07) 0.10)

(.66} 1.53
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(vi) The principal aciuarial assumptions used for estimating the Companys defined henefit obligations are set out belows Year cnded Year ended
M March 2021 31 March 2620
Discount rate 6.80 "apa 6.82 % pa

FExpected rate of ncrease in sakary 5.50% pa. 5.50% pa.
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Mortality rate (inclusre of provision for disabitity) 100% of IALM 1007 of IALM
(20172-14) {2012-19)
2237 238

Fxpected average remamimg working lives of employees(years)

The assumption of discount rate is based upon the market yiclds avatlable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities. Futuee
salary increase rate takes into account the inflation, seniority, promosion and other relevant factors on long term basis. Same assumptions were considered for compacative
persod 1. 2019-20 as reported.

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity ability Year ended Year ended
38 March 2021 31 March 2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present vakie of obligabon at the end of the penod
Increase of 0.50% {0.81) {0.76)
Decrease of 0.50% 0.88 0.84
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the perind
ncrease of 0.50% 0.87 0.84
Decrease of 0.50% (0.80) (D.78)
Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and heace impact of change due o these are not calculaicd.
(viil) Marurity profile of defined benefit obligation
Year As at As at
31 March 2021 31 Macch 2020
dto 1 Year 0.68 0.79
1t05 Year 273 214
11.08 1045

Beyond 5 Years
The Company expects to contribute ¥ 2.07 crores (previous year T 2,02 crores) 1o its geatuity plan for the next year

(ix) Risk exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumpaons, which are dynamic in nature and vary over tme. As such valuation of the Company is exposed to follow risks -
A) Salary increases : [ Iigher than expected increases i salary will increase the defined benefit oblipation.
B) Investmzent risk : Since the plan s funded then assets habilities mistatch and acruat investmenr renuen on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuanon date
can impact the defined bencfit obligation.
C) Discount rate : The defined benefir obligation caleulated uses a discount cate based on government bonds. IEbond yields fall, the defined benefit obhigaton will tend 1o
increase.
D} Morality and disability : [f the acmual deaths and disabiliry cases are lower or higher than assumed n the valuaton, it can impact the defined benefit abligation.
E) Withdrawats : [f the acrual withdrawsls are higher or lower thast the assumned withdrawals or there is a change m wathdrawal rates at subsequent valuztions, it can impact
defined benefit obligation..

/enf
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Lease related disclosures

The Company hag leases for the factory land, plant and machinery and eclated faciliies. With the exception of short-term leases and
leases of low-value underying assets, each leasc is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use assct and a tease liability. Varinble
lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and tight of
use asscts. 'The Company classifies its right-of-use asscts in 2 consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Lach lease generally imposes a zestdetion that, unless there Is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another
perty, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contzin an option to extend the lease for a further term.
The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underying leased assets as security.

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease lHability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability 13 as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Short-term leases 15,71 14.83
Leases of low value assets 3.57 4.08

Total cash outflow for leases for the yeas ended 31 March 2021 was ¥ 32.58 crores (previous year T 28.60 crores).
The Company has total commitment for shart-term leases as at 31 March 2021 2 9.35 crores {previous year  2.20 crortes).
Maturity of lease liabilities

The lease linbilities are secured by the related underying assets. Future minimum lease paymeunts (pertaining to leases other than short-
term leases) are as follows:

31 March 2021 Minirmnum lease payments due
0 to 1 year 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease payments 12.47 49.89 82.92 145.28
lnlerest expense 6.95 24.04 39.49 70.48
Net present vahies 5.52 25.85 4343 74.80
31 March 2020 Minimum lease payrments due
0 to Lycar 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease payments 12.36 49.62 95,13 157.11
Interest expense 8.00 2648 44.99 79.47
Nert present values 4.36 23.14 50.14 77.64

Variable lease payments ace expensed i the period they are incurced. Txpected future cash outflow permaining to variable lease
payment a5 at 31 March 2021 is T a1l {previous year T nil )

Information about extension and wermination options

Right-of-use assets Number Range of Average | Number |  Number of Number of
ofleases | remaining |remaining| of lcases leases with leases with
term lease term| with |purchase option| termination
extension option
option
Plant and machinery 2 | 10 Years 10 Years 2 2 2
Land 4 | 69 Years 69 Years 4 - 4

There are no leases which are ver to commence as on 31 March 2021.
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The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Intercst cxpense on lease abilities

Lixpense relating to short-rerm leases fincluded in other expenses)
Faxpense relatng o leases of low-value assets (included in other cxpenses)
Total

The movement in lease liabilitics is as follows:

Particulars

Opening lease Labilities

Add: Additen in leage liabilities due to modification af lease rental
Add: Finance cost accrued dunng the period

1.ess: Tease rent paid
Balance at ¢he end

Operating segments

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
12.53 12.4%
8.00 8.40
15.71 14.83
3.57 4.08
39.81 3%.80
Year cnded Year ended
31 March 2028 31 March 2020
77.64 81.65
0.43 -
8.00 8.4}
(1127 {12.41)
74.80 77.64

In accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’, the Board of Dircctors of the Company, being the chief operating decision

maker of the Company has determined “Srainless steel products” as the only operating scgment.

Further, in terms of paragrapb 31 of Tnd AS 108, entity wide disclosures have been presented in the consolidated financial statements

which are presented in the same nancial report.
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43 Related party disclosures

1. Relationships

(7) Eey mmnagement personnel (KMP)

SINo [Name Designation
Me. Ratan Jindal Chairmig and Managing Director
2 Mr. Abhyuday Jindal Managing Ditector
&) Mr. Tasun Kumar Khulbe Whole Time Director
4 Mr. Navacet Raghuvwshi Company Secretary
3 Mr. Anunag Manta Cluet Financial Oficer
6 Me, Gautan Ramilal Nominee Direcror [Ceased to be Director with eftect from ('w.e.f') 8 September 202]]
7 Me. Parveen Kumar Mathotra Nomunee Director{Appointed w.e.f. 8 September 2020}
8 Mr. $uman Jyon Khaitan Tndependent Dresctor
9 Al Jayacam Faswaran Tndependent Director (appointed w.e.f. 3 Angust 2019)
10 AMe T8, Bhattacharya lndependent Dicestor(Ceased to be Director wee.£. 22 September 201Y9)
1l Ms. Bhaswau Mukherjee Independent Director
12 |Mrs Arti Luniya Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f 26 Nov 2019)
13 D, Rajeev Uberoi Independent Director (Ceased to be Divector w.e.f 3 July 2010)
(b) Subsidiaries
Principal place of Shareholding / voling power
S81No |Name of the entity operatoen / counuy of| Principal activities / nadure of business Asat Asat
incarporation 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 PT. Jindal Stainless Tndonesia Indanesia Stainless Steed manufacturing 99.90% 99.99%%
2 |Jindal Stamless EZF, Dubai UAE Stanless Steel manatacturing 100.00% 100.00%%
3 15T, Group Holdings Ire. Led., Singrpore Singapore Stainless Steel manufacturing 108.00% 100.00%
+ Ibeginda! S 1., Spain South Spam Stainless Steel manutacturing 65.00% 65.00%
3 Jindal Staindess Pack Lemited Tndia Development of integeated world-class 100.00% 100.60%
indrastructure
(¢) Assaciates¥®
Principal place of Shareholding / voting power
S1No [Name of the entity operation / country of | Principal activides / nature of b
incorporation Asa Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 Jindal Stainless Corporate Managemenr Services Pavate Limited India Manpgement secvives 30000 30.00%
2 [Jindal United Steel Limited India Stanless Steel manufacturing 26.00% 36.00%
3 indal Coke Linited. India Coke Manufactucing 26.00% 206.00%
{d) Endy exercising significant influence on the Company¥
Principal place of
SiNo  |Name of the ensity operation / country of| Principal activites / pature of business
incorporation
1 Jindal Stainless (Hlisar) Limited (JSHL) [ndia Stwirkess Steel manufacturing

(e} Subsidiaries of entity exercising significant influence on the Company™

Principal place of

Sl MNa |Name of the enrity operation / country of| Principal activitics / nature of business
incorporation
1 151 Lifestyle Limited Indky Stainless steel Consumer Products
4 )51 Logisties Limited Tnchia Lopistc
3 findal Stunless Steelways Limited Irlia Srainless Steel manufacturing
+ ].5.5 Steehtalia Limited India Sruinless Steel manufictuning,

(fy Eatides under the canaol/significance influence of KMP#*

Principal place of

S1No |Name of the entity operaton / country of | Principal activities / naneme of busizess
incarporation
1 Prime Staindess DACC UAE Trading company
2 [JSL Globa Commodities Pre. Lid. Singapoce Trading company
3 |lindad Advance Materials Pvr. Lid Tndia Glass compasite business
+ O.T. Jindal Charitable Trust 1ndia Charitalile Trust

*with whom wansacttons have occurened

(g) Postemployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company

Principal plzce of
S1No |Name of the entity operation / connuy of | Principal activities / nature of business
incorperation

1 Jindal Sranless Limited Group Gramity Fund India Company's employee grataity rust
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, wnless otherwise stated)

44 Remuneration paid to KMP Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
7.33 4.20

Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits* 0.13 13
Sitting fees 0.25 0.23
Tatal 7.93 4.56
*Does not mchude the provision made for grannty and leave benefits, as they are determuned on an actuarial basss for all the employees together.
45 Assets pledged as security for borrowings Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
Current
Financial assets
Iivestments 0.58 253
Trade recenvahles 981.66 77941
Cash and cash equivalents a0.25 15.93
Bank balances other than above 3895 2845
Loans 1140 11.27
Grher hnancial assets 68.32 7648
MNon financial assets
[nventories 2466.91 2,3304
Other current agseis 191.69 207.20
Total 3,809.76 3,451.68
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 5,652.72 5938.28
Capital work-in-progress 49.22 213
Intvestments +81.92 384.72
0.76 2.24

Other hnancial asscts
Total
Total assets pledged as secarity

6,184,632 6,334.37
9,994.38 97%6.05

(This spate has been Intentionally lff blank)



JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summury of significans accounting policies and othes explanatory information for the veas ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in ¥ crares, voless othenvise stated)

46 Financial ingtruments

A Fimancial assets and Labilities
The sccounting dassthication of ench catepory of fisancial msrnuments, and rheir carrying amounts, ave set out below:

Particulars Nate A ar As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Financial assets measuzed at fuir value chrough profit or loss:

[mvesrmenrs 4 058 a2

Derivative assets ] 4151 36.83
Finaneial assets measurad at fair value through ather comprebensive income:

Investments + 858 858
Financial assews measured a: amortised cost:

Investments 4 39.74 3all

Loans 3 12238 i Sy

Chlier Anancial assers [ 27.57 F7.89

Trade receivables n 98166 REES T

Cash and cash equivalents 1 3023 15.93

Other bank balances 12 38.95 2843
Total 1,311.22 1,068.77
Financial liabilities measored at fair value through profit or Toss:

Derivanve liabilities 16 722 4179
Finaacial labilitics mreasured at amardised cost;

Borrowing (including current maturities of long term deb) 15,16 & 20 3,899.30 365473

Orher financial lzbiites 16 769 63 a37.61

Teade payables . 21 241527 243237
Tatal 6,151,37 6,686.70

Investment in subsidiamies and associates are messured ar cost as per Ind AS 27, 'Separcate fmancial sttements' and hence, not presented here

B Pair values hierarchy
The Fur vadue of financial instruments as refeered r in nore (4) above has been chssified into theee categories depending on the inputs used i the valuation technique. The hiemrchy gives the highest prinrity w quoted prices in active
rmackers for identical assers or liabulities [Level 1 measurements) and lowest prionity o unobservable inpurs [Level 3 measurements}

The categories used are as fatlows:

Level I: Quoted prces for identical instriments in an active narker,

Level 2: Dhrectly {e. as prices) or mdirectly (1e. denved from prices) observable market inputs, other than Leve! 1 mputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which dre not based on observable matker data {unobservable inputs). Faic walues ace derermined in whole ar in pact using a net asser vulue or valuarion model based on assumptions that ace neither supported by prices
from nbservable corrent market tronsactions in the same instoument nor ace they based on wvatlable muacket data.

B.1 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements.

As ar 51 March 2021 Note Levell Level Z Level 3 Tatal
Pinancial assets neasured 2t fair value through profit ar loss:
Lnvestments + 0.58 - - 0.58
Desivanve assces 6 - 41351 - 4151

Financial assets measured at fair value thraugh other comprehensive inconte:
Invesements 4 - 658 858

Financial liabilities measored at fair value through profit or loss:

Dervative babilines 16 - T3 - 7.22
As at 31 March 2020 Note Level L Tevel 2 Levei 3 Total
Financial assets measured ar fair valoe through prafit or loss:

Investments + 02z - - 0.22

Deavanve asseis [ 30.83 - 30.83

Financial assets measared at fair value throngh other comprehensive income:
Investments 4 - 838 8.38

Financial liabilides measured at faic value threngh profit or loss:
Derivative liahdines 16 6172 - 6179

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value

(i) The faic walue of investments in quoted equity shares is based on the curtent bid price of respective investment as at the balanee sheet date.

(ii} The Bir vahue of investments in unguoted equity shares is estimated at theic respective costs, since those companics da not have any significant operations and there has neither been any significant change in thew pecformance since
untal cecogminon nor these is any expecration of such changes in fareseeahle funre.

(iil} The Company entets into focward contracts with banks tor hedmng foreign cureency sk of its borrowings 2nd roceivubles and parables arising from imporr and expor of goods. Fair values of sueh fomeand controcts are determined
based on spot curent exchange rates and forward foreign currency exchange premiums on simifar conteacts for the remaining maturity on the balance sheet date.

1.2 Pair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instrments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are d vsing Level 3 inpauns:

Particulars Asg gt 31 March 2021 As a1 31 March 2020
Carrying valnc Fair value Carnrying value Fair value
Noen-current fimaneial assets
Tnvestments 07 09 33.80 331
Security deposits 25.70 26,86 Zh19 2553
Bank deposits with rernauning marurity of more than 12 months 076 074 23y 24
Loans 85.28 85.28 83.59 63.89
MNon-current finzncial liabilities
Security deposits 32.60 17.88 20N 3892
Bocrowings 2,5345.90 254000 2,715.57 2715.57

The managemen assessed that faic values of aurzent loans, nther curcent fimancial assees, cash and cash equivilents, other bank balances, tade rerevables, curcent mvestments, shot rerm horrowings, tade payables and other current
hnancial liabilities approximate their respecttve carrying amounts laggely due o the shart-term muturities af these instruments. “Uhe fair value of the financial assets and babilities is disclosed ar the amoune ar which the instrument could
be exchanged in 4 cumrent ronszetion hetween wilkng parties, other than in a forced oz liquidution sile. The follawing methods and assumpons were used to estisnre the fur wlues:

(i) Non-cursent investments, long-term loans and advances and nor current finncial Habilides ate evaluated by the Company based on prormeters such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the eounterparty /borrower anel uther
market ask factors

{ti) The Eiir vatues of the Company’s Exed interest-hearing liabilitics, lnans and receivbles are determined by applying discounted cash flows (DCF’) merhed, using discount mre thar seffects the issuer’s borcowing sate as at the end of the
ceporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 Maech 3021 was assessed to be msignificant.

(i) Must of the long term borrowing facilites avaited by the Compuny from unrefated parties are varinhle rate facilitics which are subject to changes in underlying interest mte indices. Further, the credit speead on these facilities ate subjece
to change with changes in Company's ceedit worthiness. The inter corporate deposg from the related PRy s abo .; \-tmble Tare ﬁa]:rv which is 5l|b‘=C[ b changes as noufed h:.' lender from tume to nmc m accardince with prevmlmg
warket nterest rates. The management believes thar the current mre of interest on these loans are
borrowings are approximate to their respectve carrying wihues.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Financial risk management

Risk management
The Compang’s actmities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
mamagement framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entty is exposed ta and how the entity manages the risk and the related impactin the financial statements

Risk Exposure ardsing from Measurement Managemene

Credit risk Tavestments in redeemable preference shares and government sccurities,| Ageing analysis, Credit ratings Bank deposits, diversificarion ol asset base, credit limits
loans, Cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables, dermvative financial
instruments and other financial 2ssets measured af amortised cost

Liqurdsty nisk Borrowings and other liabilines Relling cash {low forecasts Avalability of commutted credir lines and borrowing

Markel nisk - foreign Recogrused financial assets and labilities not denarminated in Indian rupee |Cash flow forccasting Forward foreign exchange conteacts

exchange {INR)

Market risk - interest rate Leng-term borrowings at variahle rates Sensttivity amalysis Negotiation of terms that reBect the macket factors

Marker ¢isk - security price  [Investments in equity securities Seusitivity analysis Diversification of portfolio, with focuy on strategic
mvestinents

The Company’s risk nanagement is caeried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under policies approved by the Board of Dicectors. The Board of Directors provides written
prnciples for overall nsk management, as well as policies covenmg specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidiny.

Credit risk
Credat isk 15 the risk that 1 counterpasty fuls to discharge ats ubligation to the Company. The Company's expusure tr credit sisk 15 mfluenced mamly by mvestments in cedeemable preference shares,
cash and cash equivalents, teade receivables, denvanve financial instruments and other financial assets measured at amortsed cost. The Company conhavously momtors defaults of custamers and ether

counterparties and meorporztes this information into its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit tisk hased on intermal credit ranng system. nterna] credit tng s performed for each chss of fimancal instruments wath different charrereristics. The
Company assipns the following credit mtings to each class of financial assets baged on the assumptions, inputs and Factors specific to the class of financial assets.

(1 dow credit visk

(1) Maderate credit nsk

(ni) High credir msk

Based on business envircament n which the Company operates, a default on a Enancial asset 18 considered when the counter party fails to make payments withun the agreed bme period as per contact.
1.oss mates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic conditions.

Assets are writtent off when there 18 no reasomable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Company. The Company continues to engage with
parties whose balances are written off and attempts to eaforce tepayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

sk is low and hence,

Tn respect of fmancial assers carried ar amortised cost, other than wade receivables, the management has evaluated that as ar 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the credir
ellowance, if any, 15 measured at 12-month expected ceedir loss,

In tespect of trade receivables, the Company is ceqoired 1o follow simplified approach and accordmgly, allowance 15 cecogused for lifetime expected credir losses.

Cask and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivaleats and bank deposits is managed by only imvesnng m highly rated banks and diversifyiag bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

Derivative Bnancial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are considered to have low credit nsk sunce the contracts are with veputable financial msatutions, most of which Iuve an investment grade’ credit rating,

Trade receivables

Trade recervables are penemlly nnsecured and non-interest bearing. There i3 no significant concentration of credit osk. The Company’s eredit risk management palicy in relation to trade receivables
nvolves periadically assessing the financial rehahibity of customers, making mto account their financial position, past expertence and other factors. The utilizaton of credit Timit is ceguiady monitored
and a significant clement of credit risk 15 covered by eredit insurance. The Company’s credit nsk 15 mamly confined to the risk of customers defaulting aguinst credil sales made. Qutsanding trade
receivables ate regularly monitored by the Cornpany. The Company has also taken advances and security deposits From s customers, which mitigate the credat risk to an extant. In respect of trade
receivables, the Company recognises @ provision for hfetime expected eredit losses after evaluating the individuni probabilities of default of its customers which are duly based on the inputs received
from the marketing reams of the Company.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Irevestments i redeernable preference shares of associare companies, loans {comprising secunity deposits and loan to a subsidiary) and other financial assets are consulered to have low credit risk since
there 1s 4 low sk of detaudt by the counterparties owing o their capacity 1o meet comtractial cash flow obhgatons as and when fall due. Credit nisk related to these other fnancial assers is managed by
monitoring the recoverability of such amowunts continuously, while at the same time intermal conirol system m phice ensure the amounts are within defined limits

Expeeted credit losses for financial asscis

Financial assets (other than trade receivables)
Company provides for expected credir Iosses om loans and advances other than trade recervables by assessing mdindual financial instnmenis for expectanon of any credit losses.
- For cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and derivative financial instruments- Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash
and cash equivalents, derivative inancial mstruments, ather bank balances and bank deposits is evahuated as very low.

Far loans eomprismyg secunty deposits paid - Credit risk 1s considered low because the Company 15 in possession of the underlying asset.

For other finaneial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss allawance is measured. For such financizl assets, the Company
peliey is to provide for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recogrition and provide for lifetime expected credit Josses upon significant increase in credit risk

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 Macch 2020, managerment has evaluated that the probability of default of outstanding Enancul assets {other than trade receivables) is insignificant and therefore, no
allowance for expected eredit losses has beent recognised.

Expected credit loss for trade reccivables under simplified approach
In respect of trade recewvables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credst losses using & simphified approach.

Based on evaluation of historical credit loss experience, management considers an insignificanT, ility of default in respect of recenvables which are less than one year overdue. Receivables which

are more than one year overdue are analysed mdividually and allowance for expected p{\c}qjﬂ fgfﬁélia‘ed accordingly.
/¢2 ~ o
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FINDAL STAINEESS LIMITED

Summary of significant ageounting policies and other explanatory informarion for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in T crores, unless ctherwise stated)

C.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty m meetng the oblipanions assocmted with 1ts financial lisbilites that are sewded by delivering eash or anather financial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to cosure as far as possible, it will have sufficient liquidity to meet 1ts habilities when they are due
Management momitors rolling forecasts of the Company's hquidity posion and cash and cash equivalents on the basss of expected cash flows, The Coripany takes into account the hquidity of the

marker inl which the entity operates

(a) Financing arrangements
The Company has access to the llowing undeawn borcowiag faciliies at the end of the reporiing peniod:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Secured*® 96301 623.57
* Worling capital facilities due for review every year

{b) Maturities of financial liabikides
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities inte relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.
The amounts disclosed 1n the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balinces due within 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant:
31 March 2021 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Total
years
Non-derfvatives
Borrowing (including current maturities of long term debt) along with esumated Fucure interest 20131 1,539.83 377.84 1,37679 3,495.77
Short teem borrowings 319.02 - - 319.02
Secunty deposit 15.03 329.64 344.67
Trade payables 247522 - - 2,475.22
Other fnancml labihites 650.80 2134 1247 107.87 79248
Derivatives
Dervative hability 7.22 = - 7.22
Toral 3,668.60 1,561,17 390,31 1,814.30 7,434.38
31 March 2020 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Taral
years

Non-derivatives
Borrowing (including current maruntses of long term deb) along with cstmated future interest 833.08 579.17 1,374.36 164460 4,411.21
Short term borrowings 397.56 397.56
Securtty deposit 13.47 329.64 343,01
Trade payables 243257 - - 2,432.57
Other financial liabidines 42174 1241 1241 119.87 566.43
Derivatives
Dernative liabiliy 61.79 - - 6179
Total 4,188.21 59158 1,386.77 2,054.1F 8,212.67

C.3 Market risk
(a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exclange risk in the normal course of s business. Multipsle currency exposures arise from commercial ransactions like sales, purchases, borrowings, recogmized
financial assets and liabilitics (monetary items). Certain transacoions of the Company act as natural hedpe as a portion of both assets and liabilities are denominated i sintilar foreign carrencies. For the
temaining exposure to forcign exchange risk, the Company adepts the policy of selecuve hedging based on risk perception of managemens. Foreign exchange hedging contracts are carried at farr value.

Forcign currency expasures that are nor hedged by dervative instruments cutstanding as on the balance sheet date are as under:

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Particniars
Foreign Amaonnt Foreign Amount
Currency (T crotes) currency (¥ crores)
{in million) {in million)
Loans and other financial assets
Ush 364 26.64 357 27.00
‘Trade receivables
GBP 0.02 0.o2
Balance with banks
Ush 0.01 0.08
LR .03 0.27
Borrowings
LsI - 36.30 27634
Trade payables
TSy 3951 288.85 63.75 481.83
EUR +25 364+ 371 30.95
GBP (.20 1.99 001 0.05
IPY - 0.23 0.02
SGD 0.00 (.00

Toreign exchange risk sensitivity amlysis bas been pecformed on the forergn currency exposures i the Company’s financial assets and financial labilitics at the reporting date, net of derivative
coneracts for hedging those exposures. Reasonably possible changes are based on an analyss of historic currency volatility, together with any relavant assumptions regarding near-term faure volatilicy.
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(Al amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise siated)

The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and equity due to changes in the foreign currency exchange rates are given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
3i March 2021 | 3! March 2020

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD - Tncrease by 4.69%0 (31 March 2020 - 543" fakag), (39.85)
INR/USD - Decrease by 4.69%0 (31 March 2020 - 5.45%} 122 39.85
GBP Sensitivity

INR/GBP - Increase by 8.23% (31 March 2020 - 10.65%) (0.13) {0.01)
INR/GBP - Deerease by 8.23% (31 March 2020 - 10.65%0) .15 001
'Euro Sensitivity

INR/CUR - [ncrease by 7.07% (31 March 2020 - 7.57%4) (2.56) 254
INR/EUR - Deccease by 7.07"0 (31 March 2020 - 7.57%0) 256 234

(b} Interest rate risk
{i) Fimancial Liabilities

The Compary’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on external financing. At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Company is exposed to changes m interest rates through

bank borrowings cacrying vanable interest rates. The Company's investmenes in fixed depasits carry fixed interest rates.

Ierest rate Rsk exposure
Below is the overall exposurce of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particufars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 3§ March 2020
Variable rate borrowing 2,499.30 3,556.43
Fixed rate borrowing 400.00 9830
‘Total borrowings 2.,899.30 3,654.73
Scasitivity
Below is the senswnaty of proht or loss to changes in intcrest rates
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Interest sensitivity®
Tnterest cares —increase by 50 basts pomes 8.13 11.57
Tnterest rates — decrease by 58 basis pomnis (8.13) (11.57)

* Holding all otber veiabies constant

(i1) Financial assets

The Company’s investinents in redeemable preference shaces of its associate compares and government securitics, Ioan ta a celared party and deposits with banks are carried ar smortised cost and are
bxed rate instruments. They are, therefore, not subject to mterest rate risk as defined m Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the furace cash flows will Auctuate because of 1 change in

market mterest raes,

{c) Price risk
(i) Exposnre

The Company's exposure to price nsk anises trom myvestmeats held and classified in the balance sheet either as fir value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. To

manage the price risk arsing from wivestments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

(if) Sensidvity
The table below summanses the impact of nczeases/decreases of the index on the Company's equity and profit for the year :
Tirpact on prefit before tax

Particulars Year ended Year ended
3 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Quoted equity

Price mcrease by 5% - FVITPL 0.03 0.01

Price decrease by 5% - FVTP]. (0.03) ©.01)

A\ {This y:’u’,}i‘y 5 eesr indentionally foff blante)
&/
s
A
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Capital management

The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company™s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide aa adequate reruen to shaveholders

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments o it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristcs of the underlying assels. In

order o maimtain or adjust the capital stracture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or sell

assets to reduce debl.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of its gearing ratio, debr equity ratic and ratio of net debts to its earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

(LBITDA)
Debt equity ratio
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Total borrewings (including current maturities of long term debt) 2,899.30 3,654.73
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 50.25 15.93
Net debt 2,849.05 3,638.80
Total equity 3,152.78 2,657.32
Net debt to equity ratio 90.37% 136.93%
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Profit before exceptional item and tax 601.03 236.05
Less: Other income 42.30 36.95
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense 37342 408.86
Add: Finance cost 463.70 566.89
EBITDA 1,395.85 1,174.82
Net debt 2,849.05 3,638.80
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA 2.04 3.10
Gearing ratio
Particolars As at Ag at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Total borrowings (including current matudties of long term deb) 2,899.30 3,654.73
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 50.25 15.93
Netdebt 2,849.05 3,638.80
‘Total equity 3,152.78 2,657.32
Equity and net debt 6,001.83 6,296.12
Gearing ratio 47.47% 57.79%

Code on Social Security

The Code of Social Security, 20200 ("Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidentizl assent in September 2020
Subsequeatly the Ministey of Labour and Lmployment had released the draft rules on the aforementioned code. However, the same is yet io be notified. The Company will
evaluate the impact and make accessaty adjustments to the financial statements in the period when the code will come into effect.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ceferced in our report of even date.
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